Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
020 8547 5846
henry.yellop@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 30 June 2021

Place Committee
Date:

Thursday 8 July 2021

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston, KT1 1EU
(Proceedings can be viewed online using this link https://kingston.publici.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/570600)

Covid-19 Safety measures
This meeting will be livestreamed and we encourage residents to watch virtually if
possible.
Seating capacity at the Guildhall is currently limited due to social distancing
requirements. If Members of the public wish to attend in person, you must register
your interest by 10am the day before the committee by contacting
democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk Priority will be given to registered speakers.
You will be asked to provide contact details for the purposes of NHS Test and Trace and
requested not to attend if you exhibit any symptoms of COVID19, feel unwell on the day
of the meeting or have been contacted by NHS Test and Trace and told to self-isolate.
Face coverings must be worn at the Guildhall unless an exemption applies. Social
distancing requirements must also be maintained in the meeting.
We strongly advise all those who attend to take a COVID-19 test on the day of the
meeting if possible. You can find more information about testing on the Council’s
website at www.kingston.gov.uk/rapidtesting

Members of the Committee
Councillor Stephanie Archer (Co-Chair), Councillor Rebekah Moll (Co-Chair),
Councillor Emily Davey (Co-Chair), Councillor Roy Arora, Councillor David
Cunningham, Councillor Hilary Gander, Councillor Liz Green, Councillor Lesley
Heap, Councillor Jason Hughes, Councillor Nicola Sheppard, Councillor Thay
Thayalan, Councillor Olly Wehring and Councillor Yogan Yoganathan

2

AGENDA
1.

Public Questions
A period of up to 30 minutes during which any resident of the Borough or
representative of organisations operating within the Borough (other than members
of the Council) may ask questions on matters relevant to the Committee. Questions
must be submitted in writing to democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk by 10am on
the working day prior to the meeting (Wednesday 7 July 2021)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other
non pecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on this agenda.

4.

Petitions
To receive petitions submitted by Councillors or members of the public who live,
work or study in the Borough. The petition must contains at least 20 signatures*,
and notice of the intention to submit the petition is given in writing to
democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk by 10am on the last working day prior to the
meeting.

5.

Landlord Services response to Independent Housing
Appendix A
Ombudsman determination
The Committee is asked to comply with the Independent Housing Ombudsman’s
determination made in April 2020 and note the recommendations made against
Kingston Council. The determination follows a complaint from a housing customer,
made in November 2018, about the Council’s handling of a petition regarding
Thames Water charges.

6.

Approval of the Air Quality Action Plan
Appendix B
The Committee is asked to approve and adopt the Air Quality Action Plan 2021 2026 for publication by 31st July 2021.

7.

Food and Green Waste Composting Services
Appendix C
The report recommends the Committee award four contracts for the handling,
haulage and treatment of food and green garden wastes produced by residents in
the four South London Waste Partnership boroughs: RB Kingston, and LBs
Croydon, Merton and Sutton Services.

8.

Greenspace Services Contract
Appendix D
The Committee is asked to approve the recommendation for award of the contract
for Greenspace Services in the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames.

9.

10.

Greenspaces Re-Commissioning - Contract for the Provision of Appendix E
Arboricultural Services
The Committee is asked to approve the recommendation for award of the contract
for Arboricultural Services in the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames.
Exclusion of the Press and Public
The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if
any exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish
to resolve to exclude the press and public: 4 To exclude the public from the
meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds
that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph x of Part I of

3
Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in maintaining
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
11.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

Welcome to this meeting
Notice of Webcast
This meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent recorded broadcast via the Council’s
website. The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes with the
Council. Generally, the public seating areas are not filmed. However, the layout of the
room means that the Council is unable to guarantee a seat/location that is not within
coverage area (images and sound) of the webcasting equipment.
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recording for webcasting
and/or training purposes.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected councillors. As one of three strategic
committees of the Council, it helps set the overall direction of the Council.
Social Distancing Requirements
All committees will continue to be livestreamed and we encourage residents to watch
virtually if possible.
Seating capacity at the Guildhall is currently limited due to social distancing requirements.
If you would like to attend in person, you must register your interest by 10am the day
before the committee by contacting democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk You will be
asked to provide contact details for the purposes of NHS Test and Trace and requested
not to attend if you exhibit any symptoms of COVID-19, feel unwell on the day of the
meeting or have been contacted by NHS Test and Trace and told to self-isolate.
We strongly advise all those who attend to take a COVID-19 test on the day of the
meeting if possible. You can find more information about testing on the Council’s website
at www.kingston.gov.uk/rapidtesting
Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds during the meeting, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If
you require assistance, please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the
building.

Public participation during the meeting
Public Question time
There is a question time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm to 8.00pm to provide an
opportunity for members of the public or representatives of organisations operating in the
Borough to ask questions on matters which are the responsibility of this particular
committee.

4
Questions must be submitted in writing by one full working before the meeting (i.e.
by 10am the day before the meeting) to democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk
Questions will normally be taken at the meeting in the order that they have been received.
Questions must be put in person but you can ask someone to provide translation or other
practical assistance to facilitate a question where required. If you do not attend the
meeting or fail to identify yourself at the meeting then the question will be deemed to be
withdrawn.
If you have submitted more than one question, your second and subsequent questions
shall be considered only after all other questioners have had the opportunity to ask their
questions, if time allows. You will have up to three minutes in which to ask any question.
Any questions not dealt with within the 30 minute time limit will receive a written response.
Public speaking on items on the Agenda
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions
on items listed on the agenda. Such comments would be heard prior to the
commencement of debate by Members. You need to let the Democratic Services Officer
know that you wish to make comments on an item.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this
as easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may
have a speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual
requirements or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a
difficulty, please let us know beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far
as reasonably possible.
The full rules can be found in the Council’s Constitution on the Council’s website. For
enquiries, please contact henry.yellop@kingston.gov.uk / 020 8547 5846


All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are
stairs, a lift of stair lift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.



Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.

Filming
Members of the public and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do
so but are asked to give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by
people being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the Agenda. Interests
may be personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interest declared, it might be necessary
for the Councillor to leave the meeting during the debate on any given item. Further
information regarding declarations of interest can be found in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call-in

5
Most of the decisions made at the Committee (there are certain exceptions in relation to
planning and licensing matters) can be “called in” for review by a minimum of 2% of the
registered local government electors who live in the Borough (currently 2,310 electors) or
9 Councillors.
A Decision notice will be published on the Council’s website soon after the meeting with
details of the decisions. A decision can be called in for a period of 10 working days after
the meeting. Decisions are not, therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not
going to be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny
Panel. The Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide that
no further action is necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer
the issue back to the decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a meeting of the
Full Council) with its views and a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account
of these views.
Minutes
The Minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who
said what during the debate.

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Place Committee
8 July 2021
Information item - Response to Housing Ombudsman determination against
Kingston Council from April 2020
Report by Executive Director of Place
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Emily Davey, Portfolio Holder for Housing

Purpose of Report
To comply with the Independent Housing Ombudsman’s determination made in April
2020 that a Committee notes the recommendations made against Kingston Council.
The determination follows a complaint from a housing customer, made in November
2018, about the Council’s handling of a petition regarding Thames Water charges.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to note the report and actions taken following the
determination by the Housing Ombudsman in April 2020.
This is an information item.
1.

Actions taken by Landlord Services demonstrate the lessons learnt from this
complaint and that the service has improved with offering e-petition through the
Council’s website for citizens to express their views; and

2.

The actions taken provide assurance that the housing service has strengthened its
practice on handling petitions.

This Committee is asked to review and acknowledge the actions taken by Landlord
Services, following a determination by the Independent Housing Ombudsman (IHO)
made in April 2020.
The Ombudsman found that the Housing Service had not dealt with a Petition from 18
Council Housing Tenants appropriately.
The Ombudsman made a determination in April 2020 and found maladministration.
Landlord Services responded to the Ombudsman’s findings by:
1) Delivering a programme of briefings to frontline staff in the Council’s housing
service to remind staff what to do if a petition or group complaint is received. This
action ensures all staff in Landlord Services are aware of the Corporate
procedures in place to effectively manage a citizen’s right to submit a petition and
have the issue heard by a relevant Committee.
2) Landlord services reviewed the guidance on the RBK website about how to
submit a petition and found it to be accurate
3) Landlord services has reviewed the process to handle petitions effectively so that
all stakeholders are clear on roles and responsibilities.

Appendix A
The Committee is recommended to:
1) Approve the actions taken in response to the IHO determination, made in
April 2020, about our handling of a petition;
2) Delegate to the lead officer landlord services that a response is made to
the IHO with the published minutes arising from this item of the Place
Committee for 8 July 2021
Benefits to the Community:
Citizens are assured that petitions will be handled correctly by Landlord services.
Key Points
A. A petition was submitted by a housing customer in November 2018 regarding the
issue of water rate charges. The petition was not handled appropriately. A formal
complaint was brought against the Council by one of the petitioners. The complaint
went to the Housing Ombudsman for resolution. The Ombudsman upheld the
complaint and made recommendations in April 2020 that the Council should:
1. Pay the complainant a modest amount of compensation, to acknowledge the
time and trouble in bringing this complaint (completed)
2. Note the IHO determination at an appropriate Committee meeting (report
submitted today.)
Context
1. Kingston Council was formally challenged by a tenant in 2016 about the
administration of Water Charges for the supply of water and sewerage services
provided by Thames Water.
2. The individual complaint was subsequently endorsed by the submission of an
e-petition by 18 other signatories in November 2018. The petitioner took her
complaint to the Housing Ombudsman Service. Subsequently the Ombudsman
determined that the Council had administered the petition poorly.
3. The original complaint about Water Charges was subject to a legal challenge
through the High Court, and at the Court of Appeal. The legal case was concluded
and judgement given by the Appeal Court in October 2020. Refunds have been duly
administered to tenants.
4. Kingston Council has effectively managed the prescribed refund of water rates to
current and former tenants, following the Appeal Court decision.
Proposal and Options
5. This report brings to a conclusion the actions set out in the IHO determination from
April 2020.
6. No other options have been given or considered.

Timescale
7. Actions have been completed following receipt of the IHO determination and the
first available Committee meeting to include this item on the agenda.

Appendix A
Financial Context
8. The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these challenges.
The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing demand for
services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find adequate
funds to meet the borough's needs.
9. The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty. The
impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is currently
unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local businesses
and the Council itself remain uncertain.
10. Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities.
Resource Implications
11. The complainant was paid £50 compensation.
Legal Implications
12. None
Risk Assessment
13. Housing residents require confidence that if they submit a petition to the Council, it
will be acknowledged, handled and escalated appropriately in line with the
Corporate Policy.
14. Mitigation has been put in place to ensure all staff in Landlord Services know how to
handle petitions.
Equalities Analysis
15. No change to existing policy on managing petitions
Health Implications
16. None
Road Network Implications
17. None
Sustainability Implications
18. Submitting petitions on line reduces paper
Background papers held by author

Appendix A
19. None other than those referred to in this report
IHO determination letter dated April 2020
Author of report - Jane Ball Lead Officer Landlord Services
Jane.Ball@kingston.gov.uk 0208 547 5002

Appendix B
Place Committee
8 July 2021
Approval of Air Quality Action Plan
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Cllr Stephanie Archer, Portfolio Holder for Environment &
Sustainable Transport
Purpose of Report
To approve and adopt the Air Quality Action Plan 2021 - 2026 for publication by 31st
July 2021.

Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
1.

The Air Quality Action Plan, given at Annex 1, subject to any amendments made
at the meeting, be approved and adopted for implementation with effect from 31st
July 2021

Benefits to the Community:
The Air Quality Action Plan sets out the steps the Council will take to improve Air Quality
throughout the Borough, preventing further deterioration of the environment in which
people live, work and visit during a period of anticipated population increase and the
associated implications that presents for Air Quality in the Borough.
Based upon the successful Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality, the Action Plan has,
through that process, been developed with input from citizens and reflects where they
feel the Community can both assist in creating and benefiting from improved Air Quality.
Improvements in air quality will have a positive health consequence and in turn can suppo
other local priorities such as health inequalities, care integration and regeneration.
Key Points
A.

The current five year Action Plan was approved in July 2016 for a five year period to
2021. A copy of the Action Plan is available on the Council's website.

B.

Air quality is one of the biggest health and environmental issues we face. It has huge
impacts on our health and we are taking action to tackle it through this Action Plan and
related strategies.

C.

However, the Council recognises that this is an issue that can’t be solved without the
engagement of other parties.The Action Plan reflects our commitment to improve air
quality across the borough by working together with residents, communities,
businesses and partners to find solutions and ideas that will improve all our lives.

Appendix B
D.

Development of the Plan has benefited greatly from the Citizens’ Assembly on Air
Quality held in Autumn 2019, with many of the actions arising from the Assembly
being reflected in this Action Plan.

E.

The AQAP sets out a range of challenging actions across development control,
transport planning and public health that will run in parallel with and support the
borough’s planned growth agenda. These actions aim to improve air quality in the
borough through a range of measures designed to promote cleaner sources of
transport, development control and lifestyle activity.

F.

This report seeks adoption of the Air Quality Action Plan given at Annex 1 for
implementation on 31 July 2021.

Context
1.

Air quality is an important Public Health issue in Kingston, it contributes to
shortening life expectancy and disproportionately impacts the most vulnerable.

2.

The whole of the Borough was designated an Air Quality Management Area
(AQMA) in 2003, requiring the Council to develop an Air Quality Action Plan
(AQAP) setting out the measures it intends to put in place in pursuit of National
Air Quality Objectives. Subsequent Annual Reviews have identified that the
AQMA should remain.

3.

In February 2020, a report outlining the findings of the Council’s Citizens’
Assembly established that the findings would be incorporated into a planned
review of the Air Quality Action Plan due that year.

4.

Whilst the Coronavirus pandemic meant that the review had to be delayed, a
draft Air Quality Action Plan was compiled, taking into consideration the findings
of the Citizens Assembly and the GLA Air Quality Action Matrix.

5.

Following the statutory consultation and engagement process a revised draft Air
Quality Action Plan 2021-2026 was developed and is attached at Annex 1.

Engagement
6.

The Draft Air Quality Action Plan was shared with and discussed by the member
officer Air Quality Working Group on 15 October 2020, before being finalised and
shared with members of the Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality in an online
meeting on 22 October 2020, ahead of the engagement process launch.

7.

The draft Air Quality Action Plan was made available for consultation on the
council's online Community Engagement Portal “Lets Talk” between 17
November 2020 and 17 January 2021. In addition, a number of statutory
consultees were directly consulted including Defra, the Greater London Authority,
the Environment Agency, the Highways Authority and neighbouring boroughs.

8.

The engagement exercise was supported by a communications campaign which
commenced some months before the engagement, ran through the period and
was designed to raise awareness of and participation in the engagement.

9.

Consultation via the community engagement portal attracted 42 responses. Full
details (GDPR redacted) of the consultation responses are available as a
background document.

Policy Refinement
10.

A summary of the main themes arising from the engagement process, together
with officer comments, is given at Annex 2.

Appendix B
11.

Public consultation responses to individual actions were categorised as:
‘complete agreement’, ‘caveated agreement’ and ‘disagreement’. Caveated
agreements were those that were broadly supportive of a given action but
suggested alterations or additions be made. Comments classified as ‘complete
agreement’ made up 40.8% of responses. Those classified as ‘caveated
agreement’ made up 52.9%. Disagreements made up 6.3%, meaning that 93.7%
of responses were in broad agreement at least.

12.

Common themes within the responses were expressions of discomfort at the
prominence of measures designed to promote electric vehicles, with respondents
preferring more sustainable transport modes, a desire to see existing green
spaces and infrastructure better protected, and concerns that the plan was not
ambitious enough.

13.

One respondent followed up their portal response in writing and was concerned
about controlling emissions during the planning process and felt the actions on
planning were weak and not specific enough. To remedy this, officers met with
Development Control colleagues to refine and tighten up the actions related to
this area of work.

14.

Following the engagement process some minor amendments were made to
further refine and develop the Actions to ensure that they are clear,
understandable and measurable. To allay concerns raised by respondents to the
public consultation that the plan was not ambitious enough, more challenging
targets and dates for completion were added.

15.

As required by the Environment Act 1995, the revised policy was shared with the
Greater London Authority (including Transport for London) for comment. We are
pleased to have received a positive endorsement of the Action Plan by the GLA
and TfL with some minor amendments requested and which have been applied.

Proposal and Options
16.

Members are invited to consider and approve the Air Quality Action Plan
2021-2026.

Timescale
17.

Once agreed, the Air Quality Action Plan will be prepared for formal publication
and shared with the Citizens Assembly Members, the Greater London Authority
and neighbouring local authorities prior to it’s implementation on 31st July 2021.

18.

Publication of our new Air Quality Action Plan will be actively promoted through
press and social media in order to increase awareness of it and the Actions
contained within it.

19.

It should be noted that the Action Plan covers a 5 year period, and accordingly
Actions are programmed for delivery at different times and periods throughout
the period of the Action Plan.

20.

Progress against the Actions in the Plan is assessed annually in our Annual
Status Reports, published on our website in May for the preceding calendar year.

Financial Context
21.

The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term -

Appendix B
even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.
22.

The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remain uncertain.

23.

Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities

Resource Implications
24.

The AQAP actions and associated monitoring and review obligations will be
factored into the work plans for the Shared Environment Service.The listed
actions will be funded from existing revenue budgets, sharing of resources or
from identified funding streams in some areas. Some actions are currently not
funded and delivery will depend on availability of resources and successful
bidding for additional funding in the future.

25.

The Team Leader Strategy and Commissioning in the Highway and Transport
Services - as the service most impacted by the planned actions - has been
consulted and is comfortable with the requirements placed upon that service.
Many of the actions can be incorporated into the usual work plans and / or
considered for Local Implementation Plan (LIP) funding. Conversations with
other, less impacted, services are ongoing however their support is anticipated
with most services being engaged during the early plan drafting stages.

Legal Implications
26.

When the Borough was designated an Air Quality Management Area in 2003,
under the Environment Act 1995, it had to prepare a written plan, referred to as
an action plan, in pursuit of the achievement of air quality standards and
objectives in the designated area. This plan must be reviewed regularly and no
less than every 5 years.

27.

The attached draft plan is a revised action plan under S84(4) of the Environment
Act 1995.

28.

Under Section 84(3) of the Environment Act 1995 an action plan shall include a
statement of the time or times by or within which the local authority in question
proposes to implement each of the proposed measures in the plan.

Risk Assessment
29.

Failure to produce an Action Plan not only provides reputational risks but may
also leave the Authority in a weaker position to take forward actions to improve
air quality, justify the need for controls on developments or secure funding.

30.

Some Actions within the Plan are ambitious, necessarily so as many of the steps
required to effect a substantial change in Air Quality need to be ambitious. Some

Appendix B
will require additional funding, and others will be dependent on other plans,
policies or connected actions being taken. There is a risk that some Actions will
not be deliverable, or within specified timescales, due to failures in these related
measures or other factors outside the direct control of the Council.
Equalities Analysis
31.

An Equalities Impact Assessment relevance test has been carried out. The
relevance test established that this policy does not present either a medium or
high detrimental impact to any of the protected characteristic groups, and as
such a full EQIA is not required.

Health Implications
32.

Tackling air quality contributes to increasing healthy life expectancy and reducing
early death from cardio-respiratory disease and cancer.

33.

The main health impact of air pollution builds up over a long time and comes
from exposure throughout life. It contributes to long-term illness as well as to
deaths.

34.

High short term levels of air pollution can also make existing health conditions
worse and are linked to hospital admissions for heart conditions and lung
problems such as asthma attacks.

35.

At the last time of testing (2016), TfL’s London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory
revealed that roughly 4000 borough residents live in areas that do not meet
national standards for air quality. Health implications of exposure to poor air
quality are disproportionately felt by the very young, the old, those with
pre-existing pulmonary conditions and economically disadvantaged people.

36.

In seeking to improve local air quality, this Action Plan will have a positive impact
on the health of residents and visitors in the Borough.

Road Network Implications
37.

Some Action Plan measures may have an impact upon the development of the
road and other transport networks; however, widespread implications are not
anticipated and many are likely to be complementary network enhancements
(creation of cycle facilities, pedestrian enhancements etc).

Sustainability Implications
38.

The Air Quality Action Plan will have broad, positive implications for the
environmental sustainability of the borough in promoting pro-environmental
behaviours in many aspects of life. 50% of nitrogen dioxide emissions in the
borough arise from road transportation, which is therefore the main focus of the
Action Plan. Progress in this regard will provide numerous environmental benefits
aside from improving local air quality (e.g. reduction in CO2 emissions).

39.

The Action Plan will have a positive impact on the social sustainability of
activities within the borough due to the inequitable distribution of the health
consequences of exposure to air pollution.

Appendix B
40.

Economic sustainability will also be positively impacted due to the focus on
facilitating sustainable and efficient transport modes and the greening of public
realms within the borough, both serving to revitalize commercial areas.

Background papers held by author: David Kingstone, Licensing & Environmental
Compliance Team Leader; 020 8547 5537 david.kingstone@kingston.gov.uk

Annex 1
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

AIR QUALITY
ACTION PLAN
2021-2026

June 2021

FOREWORD

It is my pleasure to present you with our revised Air Quality Action Plan for 2021
to 2026 which sets out our plans for improving the quality of the air we breathe.

Air pollution represents a significant threat to the health of our residents
and those who work in the borough. It both contributes to instances
of and exacerbates the symptoms of illnesses such as asthma, COPD
and lung cancer. Additionally, the impacts of poor air quality are
disproportionately felt by the very young, the very old, the poor and
those with preexisting health conditions. Ultimately though, everyone in
our borough will be negatively impacted in some way by air pollution.
The Royal Borough of Kingston will use the roadmap presented in this Action Plan
to reduce air pollution levels for the benefit of all our residents and those who
visit the borough. This revised plan builds upon the work done during the last five
years under our 2016-21 Air Quality Action Plan. Since 2016 the council has taken
significant steps to improve air quality. We have built 24km of fully segregated
cycleway under the Go Cycle programme, installed anti-idling road signs at
known hotspots, built a new website for air quality and reviewed hundreds of
planning applications giving advice and recommending conditions to minimise
the impact of development on air quality.
We continue to maintain an extensive air quality monitoring network of 40 nitrogen
dioxide diffusion tubes and three air quality monitoring stations. From 2016 to
2019 our network detected a steady decline in nitrogen dioxide from an average of
43.2μg/m3 across all monitoring sites in 2016 to an average of 36.0μg/m3 in 2019.
The greatest single reduction was -35.3% on Kingston Road at Tolworth Station.
However, there is still much work to be done. There are several locations in
the borough where residents are exposed to levels of nitrogen dioxide and
particulate matter above national objective levels. The council recognises that
even very low concentrations of particulate matter can harm human health, and
even at locations where the relevant national air quality objectives are being met
we know we must do more to reduce concentrations even further.

2

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

With the help of London’s first Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality, held in
November / December 2019, we have created an ambitious series of actions to
achieve this goal. We must tackle air pollution at its various sources to protect
the health of our residents and visitors. 64% of nitrogen oxides pollution in our
borough comes from road transportation and 49% of that comes from private
cars. We must promote sustainable transport options and reduce the number
of journeys being made by car that could easily be made on foot or by bicycle.
Additionally, we know that around 21% of PM2.5 pollution in our borough
comes from domestic solid fuel burning, so we must also work to dissuade
residents from burning solid fuels at home when other, less polluting sources of
heating are available.
The council cannot solve the problem of air pollution on our own, which is why
we invited our Citizens’ Assembly to formulate a number of the actions in the
Plan. Our actions detail how we intend to work with external partners and, where
we have less direct control, lobby other organisations to do what they can to
improve our air. But almost every resident, worker or visitor is both a victim of and
a contributor to local air pollution and we all have a part to play in improving the
situation as individuals. If you would like to learn more about the steps you can
take to improve local air quality and reduce your exposure, please visit the ‘What
can you do?’ page of our air quality webpages. Only through collective action can
we solve this public health crisis.
As the Lead Member for Environment and Sustainable Transport I am pleased to
champion this Air Quality Action Plan.I will do all I can to ensure that we follow
through on our commitments set out within it.
Councillor Stephanie Archer: Lead Member
for Environment & Sustainable Transport

SUMMARY
This Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has been produced as
part of our duty to London Local Air Quality Management.
It outlines the action we will take to improve air quality in
the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames between July
2021 and June 2026.
This action plan replaces the previous action plan which ran from January 2016
to December 2021. Highlights of successful projects delivered through the past
action plan include:
• The implementation of 3 school streets providing cleaner air and
promoting and facilitating safer journeys for hundreds of primary
school children
• The construction of 24km of segregated cycle paths to facilitate safe,
sustainable transport throughout the borough
• London’s first Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality, which improved
public awareness of the problem and provided much of the content
of this new action plan
Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts, it is
recognised as a contributing factor in the onset of heart disease and cancer.
Additionally, air pollution particularly affects the most vulnerable in society:
children and older people, and those with heart and lung conditions. There is
also often a strong correlation with equalities issues, because areas with poor air
quality are also often the less affluent areas1,2. The annual health costs to society
of the impacts of air pollution in the UK is estimated to be roughly £15 billion3.

The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames is committed to reducing the
exposure of people in Kingston to poor air quality in order to improve health.
We have developed actions that can be considered under seven broad topics:
1. Monitoring and other core statutory duties: maintaining monitoring
networks is absolutely critical for understanding where pollution is most
acute, and what measures are effective to reduce pollution. There are also a
number of other very important statutory duties undertaken by boroughs,
which form the basis of action to improve pollution;
2. Emissions from developments and buildings: emissions from buildings
account for about 15% of the NOX emissions across London so are important
in affecting NO2 concentrations;
3. Public health and awareness raising: increasing awareness can drive behavioral
change to lower emissions as well as to reduce exposure to air pollution;
4. Delivery servicing and freight: vehicles delivering goods and services are usually
light and heavy duty diesel-fueled vehicles with high primary NO2 emissions;
5. Borough fleet actions: our fleet includes light and heavy duty diesel-fueled
vehicles such as mini buses and refuse collection vehicles with high primary
NO2 emissions. Tackling our own fleet means we will be leading by example;
7. Localised solutions: these seek to improve the environment of
neighbourhoods through a combination of measures; and
8. Cleaner transport: road transport is the main source of air pollution in
London. We need to incentivise a change to walking, cycling and ultra-low
emission vehicles (such as electric) as far as possible.
1
2

3

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

3

Environmental equity, air quality, socioeconomic status and respiratory health, 2010.
Air quality and social deprivation in the UK: an environmental inequalities analysis, 2006.
Defra. Air Pollution: Action in a Changing Climate, March 2010

Our priorities are:
Enforcing the
Non-Road Mobile
Machinery (NRMM)
Low Emission Zone

Reducing pollution in
and around schools,
and extending school
audits to other schools
in polluted areas

Installing Ultra
Low Emission
Vehicle (ULEV)
infrastructure, e.g.
charging points

Promoting and
enforcing Smoke
Control Areas

Improving walking
and cycling
infrastructure

You will see in this report that we have worked hard to engage with
stakeholders and communities to make a difference to air quality in the
borough. We would like to thank all those who have worked with us in the past,
especially members of the Air Quality Citizens’ Assembly. We look forward to
working with you again, as well with new partners as we deliver this new action
plan over the coming years.

4

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Promoting
and delivering
energy efficiency
retrofitting projects
in workplaces and
homes

Regular Car Free
Days/temporary
road closures in high
footfall areas

Supporting
alerts services
such as Airtext,
and promoting
the Mayor’s air
pollution forecasts

Meeting the
expectations
of the Citizens’
Assembly

In this AQAP we outline how we plan to effectively use local levers to tackle air
quality issues within our control.
However, we recognise that there are a large number of air quality policy areas
that are outside of our influence (such as Euro standards, national vehicle
taxation policy, regulating emissions from taxis and buses), and so we will
continue to work with and lobby regional and central government on policies
and issues beyond the Royal Borough of Kingston’s direct influence.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND COMMITMENT
This AQAP was prepared by Regulatory Services at Kingston Council with
the support and agreement of the following officers and departments:
Achieving for Children, Environmental Protection, Estates Services, Rangers,
Highways and Transport, Kingston Healthy and Safe, Parking, Planning,
Procurement, Property Services, Public Health, Strategy and Engagement,
and Sustainable Transport.
This AQAP has been approved by:

Matthew Hill
Assistant Director of Highways and Regulatory Services

Iona Lidington
Director of Public Health

Cllr Stephanie Archer
Lead Member for Environment & Sustainable Transport

5

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

PUBLIC CONSULTATION
Public consultation was carried out between 17th of November 2020 and 17th
of January 2021. During the consultation process, we sought feedback on the
proposed measures and were keen to engage those who live, study and work
in the borough. Upon conclusion of the consultation process, we assessed the
responses and amended the content of the action plan to take account of the
views that were expressed. Details of the responses received and the action that
the council took are provided in Appendix A.
The revised action plan was then taken to Committee and submitted to the GLA
for final approval before its adoption.
This AQAP will be subject to an annual review, appraisal of progress and
reporting to the council’s Air Quality Working Group. Progress each year will
be reported in the Annual Status Reports produced by the Royal Borough
of Kingston upon Thames, as part of our statutory London Local Air Quality
Management duties.
If you have any comments on this AQAP please send them for the attention of
the Pollution Control Team by email to pollution.control@kingston.gov.uk or
call 020 8547 5002.

6

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

CONTENTS

ABBREVIATIONS

Foreword
Summary

AQAP		

Air Quality Action Plan

Abbreviations

AQMA		

Air Quality Management Area

AQO		

Air Quality Objective

BEB

Building Emissions Benchmark

CAB

Cleaner Air Borough

		
Figure 3 Modelled map of annual mean PM2.5

CAZ

Central Activity Zone

		
1.1 AQMAs and Focus areas

EV		

Electric Vehicle

GLA		

Greater London Authority

LAEI

London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory

The Royal Borough of Kingston’s priorities

LAQM

Local Air Quality Management

3.
		

Development and implementation of Kingston’s Air
Quality Action Plan

LLAQM

London Local Air Quality Management

		

3.1 Consultation and stakeholder engagement

NRMM

Non-Road Mobile Machinery

		

3.2 Air Quality Working Group

PM10

Particulate matter less than 10 microns in diameter

PM2.5

Particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter

RBK		

Royal Borough of Kingston

TEB		

Transport Emissions Benchmark

TfL

Transport for London

Introduction
1.
		

Summary of current air quality in the Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames

		
Figure 1 Modelled map of annual mean NO2 concentrations
		
Figure 2 Modelled map of annual mean PM10

		

1.2 Sources of Pollution in RBK

		
Figure 4 NOX Emissions by source and vehicle type
		
Figure 5 PM10 and PM2.5 Emissions by source
2.

4.

Action progress

Appendix A: Reasons for not pursuing action matrix measures
Tables
Table 3.1 Consultation Undertaken
Table 4.1 Air quality action plan
Table A.1 Action plan measures not pursued and the reasons for that decision

7

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

INTRODUCTION
This report outlines the actions that RBK will deliver
between July 2021 and June 2026 in order to reduce
concentrations of pollution and exposure to pollution;
thereby positively impacting the health and quality of
life of residents and visitors to the borough.
It has been developed in recognition of the legal
requirement on the local authority to work towards air
quality objectives under Part IV of the Environment
Act 1995 and relevant regulations made under that
part and to meet the requirements of the London
Local Air Quality Management statutory process4.

1.

The UK Clean Air Strategy released in 2019, provides the
overarching strategic framework for air quality management
in the UK and contains national air quality standards and
objectives established by the Government to protect human
health. The Strategy objectives take into account EU Directives
that set limit values which member states are legally required
to achieve by their target dates.
RBK is meeting all of the national objectives other than for the gas Nitrogen
Dioxide (NO2). RBK is meeting the current objectives for Particulate Matter
(PM10 and PM2.5). However, for PM2.5 the legal objective is far higher than the
World Health Organisation (WHO) recommended guideline limit. For this
reason, in the London Environment Strategy the Mayor has committed to
meeting the WHO health-based guideline limits across London by 2030.
RBK is still exceeding World Health Organisation guideline PM2.5 limits, and
so a key area of focus will be to help the Mayor meet this 2030 target.

4

8

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Summary of current air quality in the 			
borough of Kingston

LLAQM Policy and Technical Guidance. https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/environment/pollution-and- air-quality/working-borough

Figure 1 Modelled map of annual mean NO2 concentrations (from the LAEI16)

1:48,000

30/06/2021, 14:38:51
46 - 49

0

0.5

1

< 16

49 - 52

0

0.75

1.5

16 - 19
19 - 22

LAEI2016_2016_NO2nratio_testB

22 - 25
25 - 28

52 - 55

0

0.5

1

< 16

34 - 37

55 - 58

0

0.75

1.5

52 - 55

16 - 19

37 - 40

> 58

55 - 58

19 - 22

40 - 43 Real Time Monitoring Site

2 mi

> 58

22 - 25

43 - 46

25 - 28

46 - 49

28 - 31

49 - 52

3 km

2020 Passive Monitoring Network NO2 (μg/m3)
0 – 40

31 - 34

40 – 60

34 - 37

> 60

LAEI2016_2016_PM10_B

2 mi
3 km

Low

© Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey
100019285

© Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey
100019285

RBK GIS team
© Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey 100019285 | Copyright Transport for London 2019. All rights reserved. | This information has been obtained from the Environmental Research Group of

RBK GIS team
© Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey 100019285 | Copyright Transport for London 2019. All rights reserved. | This information has been obtained from the Environmental Research Group of

40 - 43

Real Time Monitoring Site

43 - 46

9

1:48,000

30/06/2021, 14:50:10
31 - 34

28 - 31

37 - 40

Figure 2 Modelled map of annual mean PM10 (from the LAEI16)

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Low

Figure 3 Modelled map of annual mean
(from the LAEI16)
RBK PM
PM2.5
2.5

1.1 AQMAs and Focus areas
In RBK an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) has been declared
across the entire borough.
The AQMA has been declared for monitored exceedances of the
annual mean objective for NO2 and modelled exceedances of the
short-term exposure limit for PM10.
An air quality Focus Area is a location that has been identified as
having high levels of pollution and human exposure. There are two
focus areas in the borough. These are in central Kingston and on the
A3 in New Malden/West Barnes.

1.2 Sources of Pollution in RBK
Pollution in RBK comes from a variety of sources. This includes
pollution from sources outside of the borough, and, in the case of
particulate matter, a significant proportion of this comes from outside
of London and even the UK.
1:48,000

30/06/2021, 14:54:07
12 - 14

0

0.5

1

2

14 - 16

0

0.75

1.5

2-4

16 - 18

4-6

18 - 20

6-8

20 - 22

8 - 10

> 22

LAEI2016_PM25_testB

2 mi
3 km

10 - 12

© Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey
100019285

RBK GIS team
© Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey 100019285 | Copyright Transport for London 2019. All rights reserved. | This information has been obtained from the Environmental Research Group of

10

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Of the pollution that originates in the borough the main sources of
NO2 are road transportation and industrial and residential heat and
power generation. The main sources of particulate matter are road
transportation, construction and domestic biomass burning.

Figure 4 NOX Emissions by source and vehicle type (from the LAEI 2016)

Figure 5 PM10 and PM2.5 Emissions by source (from the LAEI 2016)

Kingston NOx Sources

Kingston NOx Road
Transport Breakdown

Other 2%

Car - Petrol
12%

Domestic Heat and Power
Generation 9%
Road
Transport
64%

Car - Diesel
37%

Construction 6%

HGV - Rigid
11%

Industrial Heat and
Power Generation 13%

LGV Diesel
18%
TfL Bus
11%

Waste 6%
Other 6%

Kingston PM10 Sources

Kingston PM2.5 Sources
Other
12%
Road
Transport
37%

Domestic Heat and
Power Generation 3%
Construction
28%

Resuspension
14%
Commercial Cooking 6%

11

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Non-TfL Bus and Coach 5%
Taxi 2%

Road Transport
Other 1%

Domestic Business 10%
Road
Transport
33%

HGV - Artic 3%

Resuspension
1%

Domestic
Biomass
21%

Construction
21%

Domestic Heat and
Power Generation 6%

Commercial Cooking 11%

2.

RBK’s Air Quality Priorities

Air quality priorities are chosen using an estimation
of difficulty of implementation versus magnitude of
potential impact on local air quality. RBK has nine air
quality priorities which are as follows:

12

Installing Ultra Low
Emission Vehicle (ULEV)
infrastructure
The Council will continue to
bid for additional funding
to increase electric vehicle
charging infrastructure within
the borough, promoting a
switch to cleaner vehicles.

Enforcing the Non-Road Mobile
Machinery (NRMM) Low Emission Zone

Promoting and enforcing
smoke control zones

The borough is taking part in a Pan-London NRMM
enforcement scheme funded by the Mayor of
London’s Air Quality Fund. Regular inspections
are being made to ensure compliance with the
London-wide Low Emission Zone for NRMM.
We have also been making sure that developers
are bound by planning conditions to allow
only compliant plant to operate on their sites,
registering them appropriately using the GLA’s
online portal.

The borough of Kingston is almost
entirely covered by a Smoke Control
Zone. This prohibits the burning of all
but the cleanest fuels, except when
using an authorized appliance. To
ensure that borough residents and
businesses comply with this rule we
intend to create a communications
campaign at strategic times of year to
raise awareness of the harms caused
by burning solid fuels in built up areas.

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Promoting and delivering
energy efficiency
retrofitting projects in
workplaces and homes
While the borough has been
continuing to ensure a high
standard of energy efficiency
is incorporated into new
development, retrofitting old
ones is a new priority for this
action plan.

Supporting alerts services
such as Airtext, and
promoting the Mayor’s
air pollution forecasts
The borough will continue to
promote alert and awareness raising
programmes such as Airtext and the
Mayor’s pollution forecasts. Under this
air quality action plan we will do so
using a revamped air quality website.

Improving walking and
cycling infrastructure

Reducing pollution in and around
schools, and extending school audits to
other schools in polluted areas
During the term of the outgoing action plan we
have implemented three school streets to protect
children at primary schools from harmful emissions
and dangerous traffic. We will continue this work
in addition to trialing new approaches such as
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods and promoting
sustainable transport to and from school via
School Travel Plans and other interventions.

In recent years we have delivered
more than 24km of fully segregated
cycle paths within the borough.
These highway improvements haven’t
just benefited cyclists. In line with
the Healthy Streets approach, these
measures have gone hand in hand
with the construction of new, safer,
uninterrupted walking routes making
it quicker and more pleasant to choose
active travel.

Regular Car Free Days/
temporary road closures in
high footfall areas
Meeting the expectations
of the Citizens’ Assembly

In 2019 RBK held London’s first
Citizens’ Assembly on air quality.
38 demographically representative
residents participated in two
weekends of intense lectures,
workshops and panel discussions in
order to create a clean air action plan,
the outcomes of which form the basis
of many actions in this new
Air Quality Action Plan.

13

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Every year on September 22nd we
have provided a number of Car Free
Day events throughout the borough.
From street parties to play streets to
guided walks and bicycle rides, these
events have helped to promote active
travel and good health.

3.

Development and Implementation
of RBK’s AQAP

3.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement
In developing/updating the action plan we have worked with other local
authorities, agencies, businesses and the local community to improve local air
quality. Schedule 11 of the Environment Act 1995 requires local authorities to
consult the bodies listed in Table 3.1. In addition we have undertaken the
following stakeholder engagement:

Promotion
of the AQAP
renewal on our
website

London’s
first Citizens’
Assembly on
Air Quality

14

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Articles in
the local
newspaper

Promoted on
the Council’s
social media

Public
consultation
using the
Council’s
consultation
portal

Promoted on
local radio,
Radio Jackie

Our Citizens’ Assembly brought together 38 demographically representative
residents with a view to creating a series of resident-made actions on air quality
that would form part of the basis of this action plan. Over the course of two
weekends in late-2019 we presented them with high-level information on air
quality which was peer reviewed by our specially appointed panel of experts to
ensure accuracy and balance. The Assembly was then asked to create a series of
recommendations accompanied by actions. The source of each of our actions is
listed in table 4.1.
The response to our consultation stakeholder engagement is given in Appendix A.
Table 3.1 Consultation Undertaken
Yes/No

Consultee

Yes

Secretary of State

Yes

Mayor of London

Yes

Environment Agency

Yes

Transport for London

Yes

All neighbouring authorities – LB Richmond, LB
Merton, LB Wandsworth, LB Sutton, Elmbridge BC,
Epsom and Ewell BC, Mole Valley DC

Yes

NHS CCG

Yes

BIDs

Yes

Chamber of Commerce

3.2 Air Quality Working Group

4.

Action Plan Table

The RBK Air Quality Working Group has met periodically throughout the
lifetime of the outgoing AQAP. The group includes representation from both
major political parties in the borough as well as representatives from the
major Council teams involved in the delivery of the AQAP. This group has been
instrumental in delivering the action plan and ensuring that the efforts of the
relevant Council departments are coordinated and adequately supported.

Table 4.1 shows the Royal Borough of Kingston AQAP. It contains:
• a list of the actions that form part of the plan grouped under the seven
topics;
• the responsible individual and departments/organisations who will deliver
this action;
• estimated ease of implementation;
• expected benefit in terms of emissions and concentration reduction;
• the timescale for implementation
• the outputs, targets and Key Performance Indicators
• how progress will be monitored.

15

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Table 4.1 Air Quality Action Plan
The actions have been grouped into seven categories: Monitoring and core statutory duties; Emissions from developments and buildings; Public health and
awareness raising; Delivery servicing and freight; Borough fleet actions; Localised solutions; and Cleaner transport.

16

Theme

Action
number

Action

Source

Team responsible
for delivery

Ease of delivery

Borough Fleet
Actions

1

Ensure that all SEND Vehicles are Euro 6 Complaint
with a reissued fleet of vehicles by Sept. 2021
and transition to all electric vehicles as soon as a
suitable replacement is available to match current
specification.

Citizens’
Assembly

Sustainable
Transport

Borough Fleet
Actions

2

Kingston to sign the Clean Van Commitment from
Global Action Plan and commit to swapping fleet
vehicles for zero emission versions, where they
exist and are suitable, by 2028. Kingston to lobby
vehicle providers and contractors to sign the
commitment too.

Citizens’
Assembly

Borough Fleet
Actions

3

Replace all remaining housing fleet to electric
when suitable cost-effective electric vehicles are
available. Ensure that housing fleet vehicles for
which like for like EV options do not yet exist are
Euro VI-compliant.

Borough Fleet
Actions

4

Cleaner
Transport

5

Priority
(lower
number is
better)

Timescales for
implementation

How will
implementation be
monitored

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Euro 6 compliant
by Sept. 2021.
Swap to electric
by 2028 if suitable
vehicles are
available.

Percentage of fleet
Euro 6 compliant
and electric.

Procurement

Straightforward - 2 Low - 3

6

September 2021

Has RBK signed the
pledge? How many
of our providers have
we written to ask?

GLA Matrix

Procurement

Medium - 4

8

Euro 6 compliant
by Sept. 2021.
Swap to electric
by 2028 if suitable
vehicles are
available.

Number of
vehicles swapped
for alternatively
fueled equivalents.
Number of vehicles
swapped for Euro VI
equivalents.

Devise and implement a driver training system to
promote efficient driving practice amongst Council
employees.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Straightforward - 1 High - 1

1

Summer 2022 and
ongoing thereafter
with new employees

Number of
employees
completing the
programme.

Continue to lobby TfL and Surrey CC to increase
the rate at which ultra-low emission buses are
introduced in Kingston.

Citizens’
Assembly

Highways and
Transport

Straightforward - 1 Medium - 2

2

Ongoing - we have
monthly liaison
meetings with TfL
at which ULE buses
are a standing item.
Engage separately
with Surrey CC.

Is TfL on schedule
with bus
replacements.
Proportion of Surrey
CC buses that are
ultra-low emission.

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Magnitude of air
quality benefits

Medium - 2

17

Cleaner
Transport

6

Carry out a public consultation process to
maximise quality of the bus service by optimising
routes and frequencies.

Citizens’
Assembly

Highways and
Transport

Medium - 3

Low - 3

9

Request this by June
2021.

Confirmation that
the consultation has
been requested.

Cleaner
Transport

7

Lobby Transport for London and South Western
Railways for changes to the zones system for
Kingston, Surbiton and Chessington resulting in
cheaper, Zone 5 fares.

Citizens’
Assembly

Assistant director
for Highways,
Transport and
Regulatory
Services

Straightforward - 1 Low - 3

3

Request this by
Summer 2021

Confirmation that
the request has been
made.

Cleaner
Transport

8

Implement a public e-bike hire scheme in the
borough in 2021

Citizens’
Assembly

Sustainable
Transport

Medium - 3

Low - 3

9

Summer 2021

100 bikes deployed
in the borough in
June/July 2021,
rising to 250 by
March 2022

Cleaner
Transport

9

Working with schools to carry out an Active Travel
Challenge over one month with rewards on offer
for entrants. Possibly targetting parents and
guardians with children at schools with school
streets.

Citizens’
Assembly

Sustainable
Transport

Straightforward - 2 Low - 3

6

Summer 2021

Leaderboard to be
kept and reported
back to us by schools
who sign up

Cleaner
Transport

10

In conjunction with recommendation 4.3, run a
rewards programme for Active Travel Employers,
offering rewards to employers with the greatest
commitment to active travel (e.g. showers at work,
secure cycle parking, Cycle Scheme uptake, etc.).

Citizens’
Assembly

Sustainable
Transport

Medium - 4

Low - 3

12

Autumn 2021

Healthy Streets
Officer to work
with Strategy and
Engagement on
Green Business
Initiative including
offering Peddle
My Wheels cargo
bike hire. Monthly
score of cycles
hired to businesses.
Get businesses
to self-report on
progress regarding
improvements
to facilities for
employees. Carry
out spot checks if
necessary.

Cleaner
Transport

11

Encourage businesses to sign up to a green pledge
for Kingston. Hold a healthy green workplaces
conference to encourage the use of sustainable
transport

Citizens’
Assembly

Kingston Healthy
and Safe

Medium - 3

Low - 3

9

Autumn 2022

Number of signatory
businesses. Holding
the conference on
schedule.

Cleaner
Transport

12

Investigate simplifying payment methods for
newly installed charge points in the borough. This
is likely to take the form of a ‘one app’ approach to
payments. This aim will be taken into consideration
for all future procurement of charging points.

Citizens’
Assembly

Sustainable
Transport

Medium - 4

Low - 3

12

EVCP installations
ongoing. One app
delivery by [date]

User survey. Number
of suppliers written
to.

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

18

Cleaner
Transport

13

Discouraging unnecessary idling through
continued participation with the Idling Action
campaign if possible, installation of anti-idling road
signs at known hotspots, promotion of anti-idling
online workshops provided by Idling Action with
schools, businesses, and borough drivers.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Ongoing

Road signs installed
wherever complaints
are received,
provided the
location is suitable
for signage. Number
of complaints
investigated.
Number of schools
the web workshop
has been promoted
to. Number of
businesses the
web workshop has
been promoted
to. Number of
borough employees
completing driver
training programme.

Cleaner
Transport

14

Assess the feasibility of changing all borough
residential roads to 20mph.

GLA Matrix

Highways and
Transport

Medium - 4

Medium - 2

8

End 2021

Has a feasibility
study been made?

Cleaner
Transport

15

Increasing the proportion of electric and hydrogen
vehicles and low emission vehicles in Car Clubs

GLA Matrix

Sustainable
Transport

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Tender in 2021.
Delivery from 2022

Corporate car club
contracts to be
retendered 2021. If
supplier(s) go with
floating model then
by 2026 we expect
to have 100% EV car
club fleet.

Cleaner
Transport

16

4 Very Important Pedestrian Days a year on
weekdays leading to trials of play streets in
residential areas. In business areas, target one a
year on a Sunday.

GLA Matrix

Sustainable
Transport

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Spring/Summer
2022

Number of VIP days
held per year.

Cleaner
Transport

17

Surcharge on diesel vehicles below Euro 6
standards for Resident’s and Controlled Parking
Zone permits

GLA Matrix

Parking

Straightforward - 2 High - 1

2

End 2023

Is there a surcharge?

Cleaner
Transport

18

Installation of 100 resident charge points close to
homes on targeted residential streets in 2021

GLA Matrix

Sustainable
Transport

Medium - 3

9

100 lamp column
chargers added
in 2021. a bid in
Autumn 2021 could
lead to 100 more in
2022.

Use of ORCS funding
from OLEV via
London-wide bid
in Autumn 2021.
Number of chargers
installed per year
meeting schedule?

Cleaner
Transport

19

Installation of rapid electric vehicle chargers in 3
RBK town centre car parks

GLA Matrix

Sustainable
Transport

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

4 by end of 2022

Number of rapid
chargers installed.

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Low - 3

19

Cleaner
Transport

20

Reallocation of road space; reducing parking in
accessible destinations and or restricting parking
on congested high streets and busy roads to
improve bus journey times, cycling experience, and
reduce emissions caused by congested traffic.

GLA Matrix

Highways and
Transport

Medium - 3

Medium - 2

6

We bid for LIP
funding on an
annual basis
and schemes are
delivered the
following year.

Ensuring that KPIs
embedded within
the LIP programme
are met on schedule.

Cleaner
Transport

21

Provision of infrastructure to support walking and
cycling.

GLA Matrix

Highways and
Transport

Medium - 4

High - 1

4

We bid for LIP
funding on an
annual basis
and schemes are
delivered the
following year.

Ensuring that KPIs
embedded within
the LIP programme
are met on schedule.

Delivery
Servicing &
Freight

22

Update of local authority Procurement policies
to include a requirement for suppliers with large
fleets to have attained silver FORS accreditation

GLA Matrix

Procurement

Straightforward - 1 High - 1

1

December 2021

The ethical sourcing
policy will form
part of a number
of commissioning
& procurement
policies that will
be developed and
presented to RBK
Committee in late
2021. Commissioners
will assume
responsibility
for checking
and ensuring
compliance with
this requirement.
Procurement will add
a guidance note to
the commissioning
toolkit and
templates once the
requirements have
been clarified.

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Delivery
Servicing &
Freight

20

23

Update of Procurement policies to ensure
sustainable logistical measures are implemented
(and include requirements for preferentially
scoring bidders based on their sustainable criteria)

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

GLA Matrix

Procurement

Straightforward - 2 High - 1

2

Changes to the
contract regulations
to be approved at
the Full Council and
implemented by
June 2021. Social
Value policy will
be approved by
the committee in
September 2021 but
the draft framework
is currently being
implemented. The
framework will be
updated annually to
reflect the national
changes to TOMs.

100% of relevant
procurements to
include relevant air
quality criteria.

Through
procurement by
ensuring a Social
value/ sustainable
criteria is developed
and bidders are
ask to submit their
offer and how
they will achieve
the following KPIs
(contract managers
will be responsible
to measure the
achievement of
these KPIs through
performance
management/
scorecards):
NT32 Car miles
saved on the
project (e.g.
cycle to work
programmes,
public transport
or car pooling
programmes, etc.)
NT33 Number of
low or no emission
staff vehicles
included on project
(miles driven)
NT31 Savings in
CO2 emissions on
contract not from
transport (specify
how these are to be
achieved).

Delivery
Servicing &
Freight

24

Secure delivery and servicing plans and
monitoring via planning obligations for large
traffic generators, including commercial
developments, new and expanded schools,
other community facilities and major residential
developments.

GLA Matrix

Planning

Medium - 3

N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

Have conditions
been added as
standard to relevant
developments?

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

25

Construction Management Plans imposed
by planning obligation on all major and other
sensitive development in consultation with
advice from Transport/Highways and Air Quality.

GLA Matrix

Planning

Straightforward
-2

N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

100% of relevant
applications to
include appropriate
conditions.

Performance to be
reported annually
as standard in
the Annual Status
Report on air
quality.
Emissions
from
developments
and buildings

26

London Plan policies on energy efficiency
applied to relevant development; Aspiration to
adopt BREEAM target policies for development
in RBK new Local Plan in Q4 2023 subject to
viability testing.

Citizens’
Assembly

Planning

Medium - 3

Low - 3

9

Ongoing, possible
BREEAM adoption
by Q4 2023

100% of relevant
applications to
include appropriate
conditions.

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

27

Ensuring enforcement of Non Road Mobile
Machinery (NRMM) air quality policies
through continuing membership of the NRMM
enforcement project.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Straightforward
-2

High - 1

NA

Ongoing

100% of relevant
applications to
include appropriate
NRMM Low
Emission Zone
conditions.
Number of sites
visited. Proportion
of sites achieving
compliance.

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

28

Apply London Plan CHP and biomass air quality
policies to relevant development.

GLA Matrix

Planning

Straightforward
-2

N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

100% of relevant
applications to
include appropriate
conditions.
Performance to be
reported annually
as standard in
the Annual Status
Report on air
quality.

21

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

29

Applying London Plan 2021 Air Quality Neutral
policies to new major development.

GLA Matrix

Planning

Straightforward
-2

N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

100% of relevant
applications to have
AQN assessment
and appropriate
conditions
Performance to be
reported annually
as standard in
the Annual Status
Report on air
quality.

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

30

Urban Greening Factor requirement for
relevant development in line with London Plan;
Maintenance plans for green infrastructure
secured by planning condition.

GLA Matrix

Planning

Straightforward
-2

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

31

Ensuring that Smoke Control Zones are fully
promoted and enforced through investigating
complaints of smoke, consolidating the smoke
control zones into a single zone that encompasses
the entire borough, and investigating fuel retailers
for compliance.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

32

Promoting and delivering energy efficiency
retrofitting projects in workplaces and homes
using the GLA RE:NEW and RE:FIT programmes
to replace old boilers /top-up loft insulation in
combination with other energy conservation
measures.

GLA Matrix

Property Services

Ensure that planning and development within the
borough are compliant with relevant planning
policies in relation to air quality in order to mitigate
the potential impacts of development on air
quality and to protect the health and amenity of
the population.

Citizens’
Assembly

Emissions from
developments
and buildings

22

33

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

100% of relevant
applications to
include appropriate
conditions.

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Ongoing. Smoke
control zone to be
consolidated by end
of October 2021.

Number of
complaints
investigated. SCA
consolidated on
schedule? Smoke
control page on
website. Regular
comms during
winter to remind
residents of the
legislation.

Medium - 3

6

Ongoing

Energy efficiency
improvements
delivered within
Council’s own
buildings

Medium - 2

Percentage of the
borough’s energy
needs being met
from renewable or
community sources
compared to 2018
baseline.
Planning

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Ongoing

Performance to be
reported annually
as standard in the
Annual Status Report
on air quality.

Localised
Solutions

34

Carry out air quality audits on the three schools
in Kingston where NO2 concentrations are the
highest in accordance with the GLA audit toolkit.
Promote Schools Pollution Helpdesk and GLA audit
toolkit.

Citizens’
Assembly

Environmental
Protection

Most Difficult - 5

Medium - 2

10

End of 2023

Number of schools
audited.

Localised
Solutions

35

Bid for funding to be able to implement 3
experimental schools streets per year and seek to
make existing experimental schemes permanent.

Citizens’
Assembly

Sustainable
Transport

Medium - 3

Medium - 2

6

Ongoing

Number of funding
applications
submitted.
Number of school
streets implemented
per year.

23

Localised
Solutions

36

Liaise with South West London boroughs not
covered by the inner London ULEZ regarding the
potential for a south London ULEZ.

Citizens’
Assembly

Highways and
Transport

Most Difficult - 5

High - 1

5

2026

Number of meetings
held with potential
partner boroughs.

Localised
Solutions

37

Carry out study to assess feasibility of
implementing Kingston’s first Zero Emissions Zone

Citizens’
Assembly

Highways and
Transport

Most Difficult - 5

High - 1

5

End of 2023

Completion of
feasibility study

Localised
Solutions

38

Continue to ensure that streets are designed in line
with Healthy Streets Guidance with a specific focus
on promoting sustainable transport by making
highways safer, more accessible, and attractive
through design, maintenance and greening.
Implement a framework to ensure that all planned
maintenance works consider Healthy Streets
impacts.

Citizens’
Assembly

Highways and
Transport

Medium - 4

Medium - 2

8

End of 2022

Use ‘Healthy Streets
Check for Designers’
tool to assess the
health of streets
where works occur

Localised
Solutions

39

Carry out feasibility study to assess feasibility of
implementing a Low Emission Neighbourhood in
Kingston

GLA Matrix

Highways and
Transport

Medium - 4

Low - 3

12

End of 2023

Completion of
feasibility study

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Monitoring
and other core
statutory duties

40

Collect and publish air quality monitoring data in
line with the requirements of the London Local
Air Quality Management framework.

Self-made

Environmental
Protection

Straightforward
-1

Low - 3

3

Ongoing

Current monitoring
levels maintained
and over 90% data
capture achieved.
Opportunities
sought for
installation of new
monitors (through
S106 etc.).
Annual Status
Reports submitted
on time every year.
Monitored through
air quality Annual
Status Reports and
made available to
the public through
our air quality
webpages.

24

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

41

Design and deliver a clean air communications
campaign to raise awareness of the harm caused
by poor air quality and how individuals can take
action to reduce their emissions.

Citizens’
Assembly

Strategy and
Engagement

Medium - 3

Medium - 2

6

Summer 2022

Report to the Air
Quality Working
Group

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

42

Develop a communications strategy which raises
awareness of the harm caused by solid fuel
burning. Material to be published early every
winter for maximum impact.

Citizens’
Assembly

Strategy and
Engagement

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Winter 2021

Report to the Air
Quality Working
Group

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

43

Implement a schools outreach programme
designed to raise awareness of the impacts of air
pollution and help them to create clean air route
plans. Provide this service to at least five schools
in the borough and produce an article outlining
findings for the head’s newsletter.

Citizens’
Assembly

Environmental
Protection

Medium - 4

8

End of 2022

Number of schools
reached

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

44

Ensure that the Director of Public Health is fully
briefed on the content of the Annual Status
Reports on air quality in relation to the current
situation in our local authority area, actions that
have been taken thus far, and what is needed to
reduce the health impacts of poor air quality in the
future.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Straightforward - 1 N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Annually after
May 31st - ASR
submission deadline.

Has the DPH been
briefed on schedule

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

Medium - 2

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

45

DPH will be consulted on all relevant air quality
projects to liaise with key stakeholders.

GLA Matrix

Public Health

Straightforward - 2 N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

Website hits, email
distribution, hard
copy posters/leaflets
distributed, social
media interactions as
appropriate.

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

46

In relevant Public Health publications and in the
statutory Annual Public Health Report, the Public
Health DPH will have responsibility to ensure
inclusion of up to date information on air quality
impacts on the population.

GLA Matrix

Public Health

Straightforward - 1 N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

From end 2021

Annual reports from
2021

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

47

Strengthening co-ordination with Public Health by
ensuring that at least one Consultant grade public
health specialist within the borough has air quality
responsibilities outlined in their job profile (as part
of a wider role, not a dedicated air quality post).

GLA Matrix

Public Health

Straightforward - 2 N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Out for recruitment
(hope to have a
CHoS in place by mid
2021).

Monitoring whether
an appropriate CHoS
is in place.

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

48

Director of Public Health/relevant CHoS to sign off
Statutory Annual Status Reports and all new Air
Quality Action Plans

GLA Matrix

Public Health

Straightforward - 1 N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

Ongoing

Signature of DPH/
CHoS on relevant
documents.

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

49

Provide a briefing which can be disseminated
amongst the Transport team detailing their
responsibilities in relation to air quality
improvement as well as risks and opportunities
relevant to their service area that relate to air
quality.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Straightforward - 1 N/A - Benefits
are potentially
significant but not
quantifiable

NA

End of 2022

Has briefing note
been provided on
time

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

50

Promotion of availability of airTEXT air pollution
alert system on the website, doctor’s surgeries,
hospitals, and schools. Mayor’s air quality alerts to
be disseminated using social media.

GLA Matrix

Environmental
Protection

Medium - 3

3

Ongoing

Number of
subscribers in the
borough.

Support five schools to join and achieve bronze
accreditation in the TfL STARS accredited travel
planning programme by providing information
on the benefits to schools and supporting the
implementation of such a programme.

GLA Matrix

Public Health
and Awareness
Raising

25

51

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

High - 1

Have Mayor’s alerts
been disseminated?
Sustainable
Transport

Straightforward - 2 Medium - 2

4

Ongoing

Quarterly progress
reports from the
Healthy Streets
Officer who is
assigned this task

APPENDIX A: ACTION PLAN MEASURES NOT
PURSUED AND THE REASONS FOR THAT DECISION
Table A.1 below sets out the actions that were recommended to the council but were not taken forwards along with the reasons for that decision.
Table A.1
Action Source
GLA Matrix

Action Category
Borough fleet actions

Action Description
FORS Gold for borough fleet

Reason action is not being pursued
The council does not possess a centrally controlled
fleet. Minimising emissions from the fleet we do have

Emissions from developments

Ensure compliance with GLA

is captured within other actions in this plan.
This has been merged with the action below to form a

and buildings

Control of Dust and Emissions

new action which is now action 33

Emissions from developments

SPG
Apply planning conditions to

This has been merged with the action above to form a

and buildings

ensure developments protect

new action which is now action 33

Citizens’ Assembly

Public health and awareness

neighbours from pollution
Redesign the council air quality

This has already been completed prior to adoption of

GLA Matrix

raising
Public health and awareness

webpages
Air quality in schools

this plan
This action has been captured within others in the plan

GLA Matrix
Citizens’ Assembly

raising
Localised solutions
Localised solutions

Green infrastructure
Green infrastructure toolkit

This action is captured within action 36
This action has already been fulfilled by the GLA in the

ULEZ
Park and Ride
Subsidised EV charging

provision of their Schools Pollution Helpdesk
This action is captured within action 42
This action was deemed not feasible
This action, if pursued, could incentivise car use which

Citizens’ Assembly

Citizens’ Assembly

Citizens’ Assembly
Citizens’ Assembly
Citizens’ Assembly

Cleaner transport
Cleaner transport
Cleaner transport

would be counterproductive

26

Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026

THANK YOU
FOR READING
To find out more please call 0208 547 5000
or email ehadmin@kingston.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 2
High level summary of responses to the consultation / engagement
Table A.1 below sets out a summary of the responses received to the public consultation to illustrate how
the Council has responded to feedback. The column titled “Average Support (%)” was created by averaging
the level of support expressed by respondents to the public consultation for each action within a given
category. Responses were categorized as “complete agreement”, “caveated agreement” and
“disagreement”.
Table A.1
Category
Borough
fleet actions

Average
Support
100%

Cleaner
transport

100%

Delivery
servicing and
freight
Emissions
from
development
and
buildings

NA
97%

Comments
1. EVs and EV buses aren't as good as
promoting active travel.
2. Not ambitious enough

1. Cleaning cycle paths would be a
better priority.
2. Doubts about promoting public
transport during COVID.
3. Active travel challenge needs an
equality assessment for disabilities
etc.
4. We should be incentivising people
not to own cars.
5. Make it a Public Health Campaign
rather than just a thing on the
website.
6. Create local jobs for local people
to prevent long-distance
commuting.
7. Electric cars should not be
considered a sustainable transport
mode.
8. EVCPs shouldn't take up more
pavement space.
9. Not enough focus on restricting
through-traffic.
10. Concerns about the prioritisation
of EVs over more sustainable
modes.

Response
1. Some vehicles are needed – e.g.
our SEND schools transport
vehicles. The vehicles that we
need to keep should be made as
clean as possible.
2. Since the public consultation we
have added more specific targets
and target dates.
1. We note this point and have
passed it on to our Contracts
dept.
2. This action plan will run until
2026 – hopefully long after the
Coronavirus pandemic is brought
under control. Public transport is
of vital importance to reducing
emissions from transport.
3. We recognise this need and will
ensure that the challenge is
properly assessed.
4. The Council’s Highways and
Transport dept. has taken actions
to incentivise modes of transport
other than private cars – e.g. Low
traffic neighbourhoods.
5. This is captured within action 48
and 49 of this plan.
6. The Council has limited ability to
change this.
7. Some car journeys are not readily
interchangeable with other
modes of transport.
8. The Council will ensure that
enough pavement remains to
protect accessibility and public
amenity.
9. The Council is taking action to
ensure that sensitive areas are
protected from the
consequences of through-traffic.
10. The Council does not prioritise
EVs over more sustainable modes
of transport.

No comments
1. Doesn't go far enough.

1. Since the public consultation we
have added more specific targets
and target dates.

Annex 2
Localised
solutions

86%

Monitoring
and other
core
statutory
duties
Public health
and
awareness
raising

NA

100%

1. Doesn't go far enough.
2. Highlighting loss of green space
and playing fields at schools.
3. Include anti-idling.
4. Don't forget other emissions
sources in areas around schools.
5. Concern that it will unfairly target
those who can't afford EVs.
6. Electric cars should not be
considered a sustainable transport
mode.
7. This must not come at the cost of
reduced green space.
8. Incomplete cycle tracks can be
more dangerous than none at all.

1. Since the public consultation we
have added more specific targets
and target dates.
2. Such decisions are outside the
remit of this action plan.
3. This is captured within action 15
of this plan.
4. This action plan and particularly
action 39 take a holistic approach
to regulating emissions around
schools.
5. The impacts of poor air quality
are disproportionately felt by
economically disadvantaged
people. The equalities impact of
poor air quality must be
considered.
6. EVs are not prioritised over more
sustainable modes of transport
such as walking, cycling and
public transport.
7. Green spaces are important to
the health and amenity of our
residents and are included within
action 36 of this plan.
8. Unfortunately cycle tracks take
time to build. Steps are taken to
ensure unfinished sites are not
used until safe.

No comments

1. Significant public support for
banning solid fuel burning entirely.
2. Shouldn't only focus on domestic
solid fuel but also commercial
cooking.

1. It is the view of this Council that a
ban on all solid fuel burning must
come from a higher tier of
government.
2. Current Smoke Control legislation
captures some emissions from
commercial cooking.

Appendix C
Place Committee
8 July 2021
Award of contracts for the receipt, bulking, haulage, and treatment of food waste
and green waste
Report by the Director: Sarah Ireland, Executive Director of Corporate and Communities
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Cllr John Sweeney, Portfolio Holder for Waste
Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report is to recommend the award of four contracts for the handling,
haulage and treatment of food and green garden wastes produced by residents in the
four South London Waste Partnership boroughs: RB Kingston, and LBs Croydon,
Merton and Sutton Services to the Place Committee.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:

1. The following award recommendations are approved by the committee:
Following the procurement process set out below, and subject to approvals
through the relevant governance processes in LBs Croydon, Merton, and Sutton,
the Council should award Lot 1 to Bidder A, Lot 3.1 to Bidder B, Lot 3.2 to Bidder
C, and Lots 5.1 and 5.2 to Bidder D - refer to Part B Confidential Annexe Food
and Green Waste for Bidder names.
2. If approved the contracts would be for an initial period of 4 years and 7 months
commencing on 1 September 2022, with possible extensions up to 31 March
2030 for a total contract value of £16m for the full term.
Benefits to the Community:
The separate collection and subsequent treatment of food and green garden wastes are
essential features of modern, sustainable household waste management, making a
significant contribution to the recycling rate in each of the Partnership boroughs. These
wastes are transformed by treatment into new products, including biogas that displaces
fossil fuels, compost, and soil conditioner for agriculture.

Key Points
A.

The contracts used by the South London Waste Partnership to handle haul and
treat food and green garden wastes expire at the end of August 2022. In relation to
LBs Croydon, Merton and Sutton the incumbent contractor, Viridor, is not in a
position to to extend these contracts because planning permission for the receipt of
these wastes at Beddington expires at the end of December 2022, and the
company owns no suitable alternative site. In relation to RB Kingston, Viridor has
confirmed that they do not wish to extend the contracts for the handling and
treatment of these wastes at the Council’s transfer station at Villiers Road.

Appendix C
B.

Soft market testing indicated that there was limited commercial interest in these
contracts in their current form. In particular there are limited commercial waste
transfer stations in the Partnership area capable of receiving the type and quantities
of food and green waste produced by residents. In order to increase competition
the project team developed proposals for the refurbishment and recommissioning of
the mothballed local authority waste transfer station at Factory Lane in Croydon.
This transfer station has not been operational since 2008, and it is not in a condition
currently to receive wastes. The cost of refurbishing the transfer station to make it
fit for purpose was estimated using structural and electrical surveys and a desk-top
modelling exercise.

C.

In order to further increase competition, the project team structured the
procurement in nine separate Lots: two lots relating to the collection and treatment
of wastes received at Kingston’s waste transfer station (‘Villiers Road’); and seven
lots relating to the receipt, handling, haulage and treatment of wastes produced by
residents in Croydon, Merton and Sutton. This none Lot structure had the effect of
encouraging much wider market interest in the contracts on offer, including from
specialist food treatment companies and farmers, as well as the anticipated major
waste multinationals.

D.

The seven Lots relating to Croydon, Merton, and Sutton were not each mutually
exclusive. Instead the individual Lots proposed various different and overlapping
ways of delivering the same services that the boroughs required. Consequently it
was made clear in the Invitation to Tender that not all Lots could or would be
awarded. The evaluation process would determine the most economically
advantageous tender for each Lot, producing Winning Tenders, and the Council
would subsequently determine which combination of these Winning Tenders would
provide the optimal service coverage for the three Partnership boroughs.
Consequently some tenders that were the Winning Tenders within their specific Lot
were bound not to be awarded contracts.

E.

The two Lots relating to RB Kingston (Lots 3.1 and 3.2) are independent of the
other seven Lots, and this report recommends acceptance of the most economically
advantageous tenders for each of the Kingston Lots.

F.

In relation to the services required by Croydon, Merton, and Sutton, this report
recommends the award of a contract to a specialist anaerobic digestion plant in
Mitcham to receive up to 5,000 tonnes of food waste directly delivered by collection
vehicles (Lot 1), with the remainder of the three boroughs’ food and green garden
wastes being delivered to a commercial waste transfer station (Lots 5.1 and 5.2).

G.

If approved these contracts will provide the Partnership with a number of benefits,
including the fuelling of some waste transport vehicles with biogas generated from
food waste, haulage using vehicles accredited to FORS ‘Silver’ standard, and a
corporate commitment to annual carbon management planning and greenhouse
gas auditing.

Context
1. The food and green waste project is complex and high risk due to the shortage of
local waste transfer station facilities capable of accepting food and green waste on
behalf of Croydon Merton and Sutton. With limited local commercial transfer
stations capable of serving the three boroughs, the Partnership faced poor
competition at best, or an incomplete solution for the green and the food waste
services. The worst case scenario being that the three boroughs would not receive

Appendix C
a bid, and this risk carried an annual liability of £6m in additional food and green
waste treatment costs.
2. Due to the risks identified for Merton Croydon and Sutton, a multiple lot tender was
developed. The project team split the two waste streams and then designed 9 lots
that would enable both the major operators in the area to bid as well as open-up
this opportunity. This approach enabled the smaller AD operators to bid directly to
collect and treat the food waste and allowed the farmers to bid directly for the
collection and treatment of the green. This approach created a great deal of market
interest and was very successful in creating competitive tension.
3. Two Lots were designed for the Royal Borough of Kingston, the first for the
collection haulage and treatment of green waste from the Villiers Road Waste
transfer station, and the second for the collection haulage and treatment of food
waste from the same waste transfer station. A further seven lots designed for
Merton Croydon and Sutton.
4. It is inevitable that, as a result of the structure of this Procurement Process not all
Lots would be awarded.
5. The full list of Lots included in the Invitation to Tender is set out in the table below,
together with a column showing how many tenders were received for each Lot.

LOTS

Description

Bids
received

LOT 1

Direct delivery of food waste to a treatment facility – up to 5000 tonnes
only

1

LOT 2.1

Collect green waste from Factory Lane transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies)

5

LOT 2.2

Collect food waste from Factory Lane transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies)

6

LOT 3.1

Collect green waste from Villiers Road transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies)

6

LOT 3.2

Collect food waste from Villiers Road transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies)

5

LOT 4.1

Receive green waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and
haul it away for treatment at a local authority nominated facility

1

LOT 4.2

Receive food waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and haul
it away for treatment at a local authority nominated treatment facility

1

LOT 5.1

Receive green waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and
haul it away for treatment at the contractor’s nominated treatment
facility(ies)

1

Appendix C
LOT 5.2

Receive food waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and haul
it away for treatment at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies)

1

Instructions to Tenderers
6. As above, the 7 lots designed for Merton Croydon and Sutton overlapped and not
all lots could or would be awarded.
7. The invitation to tender sets-out and clarifies the following:
The Authority reserves the right not to award any one or more Lots. Indeed it
is inevitable that, as a result of the structure of this Procurement Process not
all Lots will be awarded
8. The combination of Lots could generate a range of potential outcomes and so the
procurement documents set-out the following principles for the evaluation and the
subsequent award of the Lots:
The Authority will calculate the combined price and quality score for each Lot
independently and will take forward the highest scoring Tender for each,
resulting in one winning (highest scoring) Tender in relation to each Lot
(‘Winning Tender’).
The Authority will consider the Winning Tenders, and determine to which it
will award Lots. The Authority intends to award Lots to Winning Tenders so
as to provide the optimum overall service “coverage”. As noted above, the
Authority is under no obligation to award any specific Lot, or any combination
of Lots. However, the Authority will only award Lots to Winning Tenders.
9. In addition to the above, the documents state the procurement will not award any
Lot to more than one Bidder, to provide bidders with some certainty over tonnes and
also to prevent an unwieldy number of contracts and contractor interfaces.
10. The procurement exercise used the Competitive Procedure with Negotiation, and so
included an option to accept the initial tenders without negotiation.
Evaluation of Lots and the Winning Tenders
11. As outlined above, the Authority evaluated the bids received for each Lot
independently in order to calculate the combined price and quality score for each
Lot. The resultant highest scoring Tender for each Lot resulted in one winning
(highest scoring) Tender in relation to each Lot - the ‘Winning Tender’. The
Procurement Outcome and Evaluation Summary are contained within the PART B
Confidential Annexe - Food and Green Waste - Procurement Outcome and
Evaluation Summary’
12. The Winning Tenders for each lot were as follows:
a)

Lot 1 Direct delivery of food waste to a treatment facility – up to 5000 tonnes
only. A compliant bid for Lot 1 was received and evaluated and produced the
‘Lot 1 Winning Tender’ from Bidder A.

Appendix C
b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

Lot 2.1 Collect green waste from Factory Lane transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies). A number of
compliant bids were received for Lot 2.1. The bids were evaluated and
produced the ‘Lot 2.1 Winning Tender’ from Bidder B.
Lot 2.2 Collect food waste from Factory Lane transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies). A number of
compliant bids were received for Lot 2.2, the bids were evaluated and
produced the ‘Lot 2.2 Winning Tender’ from Bidder C.
LOT 3.1 Collect green waste from Villiers Road transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies). A number of
compliant bids were received for Lot 3.1. The bids were evaluated and
produced the ‘Lot 3.1 Winning Tender’ from Bidder B.
LOT 3.2 Collect food waste from Villiers Road transfer station and treat the
waste at the contractor’s nominated treatment facility(ies). A number of
compliant bids were received for Lot 3.2, the bids were evaluated and
produced the ‘Lot 3.2 Winning Tender’ from Bidder C.
LOT 4.1 Receive green waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and
haul it away for treatment at a local authority nominated facility. A compliant
bid for Lot 4.1 was received and evaluated and produced the ‘Lot 4.1
Winning Tender’ from Bidder D.
LOT 4.2 Receive food waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and
haul it away for treatment at a local authority nominated treatment facility. A
compliant bid for Lot 4.2 was received and evaluated and produced the ‘Lot
4.2 Winning Tender’ from Bidder D.
LOT 5.1 Receive green waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and
haul it away for treatment at the contractor’s nominated treatment
facility(ies). A compliant bid for Lot 5.1 was received and evaluated and
produced the ‘Lot 5.1 Winning Tender’ from Bidder D.
LOT 5.2 Receive food waste at the contractor’s nominated receipt point and
haul it away for treatment at the contractor’s nominated treatment
facility(ies). A compliant bid for Lot 5.2 was received and evaluated and
produced the ‘Lot 5.2 Winning Tender’ from Bidder D.

The Lots to be awarded are recommended as follows:
13. The Authority considered the combination of lots from Winning Tenders and the
recommendation is to award the following lots that together when combined provide
the optimum overall service coverage for the partner boroughs.
14. As stated above, it is inevitable that, due to the structure of this Procurement
Process not all Lots would be awarded.

Lot

Winning
Tenderer

Recommendation

Lot 1 - Direct Delivery of Food

Bidder A

Award to Bidder A

Lot 2.1 - Factory Lane Green Waste

Bidder B

No Award

Lot 2.2 - Factory Lane Food waste

Bidder C

No Award

Lot 3.1 - Villiers Road Green waste

Bidder B

Award to Bidder B

Appendix C
Lot 3.2 - Villiers Road Food Waste

Bidder C

Award to Bidder C

Lot 4.1 - Transfer and haul Green

Bidder D

No Award

Lot 4.2 - Transfer and haul Food

Bidder D

No Award

Lot 5.1 - Transfer, haul, treat Green

Bidder D

Award to Bidder D

Lot 5.2 - Transfer, haul, treat Food

Bidder D

Award to Bidder D

Proposal and Options
The following options were considered:
15. Option 1. Do nothing. This option would mean that as the current contract expired
the food and green garden wastes collected would have to be disposed of through
the Beddington Energy from Waste facility, at a greatly increased cost, and with a
very substantial reduction in the boroughs’ reported recycling rates. This is not a
viable option and is not recommended.
16. Option 2. Bring the service in-house. The Factory Lane transfer station offered
the boroughs a viable in-house waste transfer station solution. However, none of
the Partnership boroughs have access to the large specialised articulated vehicle
fleets required to transport these wastes in bulk, nor do they own facilities nor have
the expertise subsequently to treat the wastes at either a composting or AD facility.
A completely in-house service does not provide a complete solution and so
therefore to bring all the services in-house is not a viable option and is not
recommended.
17. Option 3. Make available an unlimited tonnage of food waste for treatment at a
local anaerobic digestion facility. Given the considerable environmental and
social value benefits associated with local treatment of food waste this would be an
attractive option were it not for the constraints around access to the single local site
that could offer this direct-deliver service, in addition to the impact of diverting all of
the Partnership’s fleet through this residential area leading up to this site. The
Partnership’s food waste collection vehicles cannot risk delays while waiting to
weigh and tip their loads, the collection schedules would be seriously disrupted. The
need for the rapid turnaround of collection vehicles imposes a limit on the maximum
amount of food waste that can be handled through a tightly constrained site.
However this option has been partly fulfilled by offering a limited tonnage of waste
for treatment through Lot 1, with the environmental and social advantages set out
above.
18. Option 4. Recommission Factory Lane waste transfer station in Croydon and
award Lot 2. The reasons for not awarding this option are set-out in the report.
19. Option 5. Award contracts for hauling away and treating RB Kingston’s food
and green garden waste (Lot 3). Kingston’s access to a centrally-located, local
authority controlled waste transfer station has proven to be a considerable asset
during this procurement. Two competitive and competent tenders from bidders B
and C to haul and treat Kingston’s food and garden waste respectively were
evaluated as offering the most economically advantageous solutions for Kingston,

Appendix C
with significant environmental benefits associated with the treatments proposed.
The option of awarding contracts to these bidders is recommended.
20. Option 6. Award contracts for providing a waste transfer station to receive
food and green garden waste from LBs Croydon, Merton, and Sutton, for
subsequent treatment at facilities nominated by the Partnership (Lot 4). This
option took advantage of the fact that, while the incumbent contractor could not
offer waste receipt and transfer facilities beyond 2022, they were contractually
obliged to offer a price for continuing treatment services. However the prices they
proposed for treating food and green garden wastes were not competitive, and so
despite the receipt of a compliant competitive bid from Bidder D to provide transfer
services under Lot 4, this option cannot be recommended.
21. Option 7. Award contracts for providing a waste transfer station to receive
food and green garden waste from LBs Croydon, Merton, and Sutton, for
subsequent treatment at facilities nominated by the contractor (Lot 5). This
option is recommended for the reasons set out in the report.
22. Option 8. Negotiate with tenderers. In the event, the most economically
advantageous tenders for each Lot were clear, compliant, thorough, and no
significant further clarifications were required. No variant bids were submitted. The
prices offered are competitive and the project team does not consider that any
advantage is likely to be gained by triggering the negotiation procedure with all 11
bidders. This option is not recommended.
Consultations
23. This procurement was covered by a statutory duty to consult the GLA/Mayor of
London, as set out in the Greater London Authority Act 1999. The project team
gave the requisite 108 days minimum notice to the GLA before the Contract Notice
was published, and subsequently engaged in a useful dialogue with the GLA’s lead
officer. The GLA’s Deputy Mayor for Environment and Energy wrote to Cllr Gander
in December 2020 confirming that the Partnership’s plans were in general
conformity with the Mayor of London’s Environment Strategy.
24. To achieve conformity with the Mayor’s Environment Strategy the Partnership
notified neighbouring boroughs of its intention to place a Contract Notice.
25. Residents in the Partnership area were previously consulted on food and green
waste services during collection service redesigns and procurement exercises that
were undertaken in each of the partner boroughs. As the project outcomes mirror
the current kerbside collection service, there are no proposed changes that will
directly impact the public, and the purpose of this procurement is to facilitate a
seamless continuation of existing collection services in exactly the same form as
now.
Timescale
26. The timescale is set out in the table below, showing both the tasks that have been
completed and those still to come:
Activity
Pre-tender market engagement
Specification agreed & tender documentation approved

Date
Completed Sept 2020
Completed Nov 2020

Appendix C
Commissioning Governance Board GW1
Committee meeting
Issue Invitation to Tender
Tender return deadline
Tender evaluation
Commissioning Governance Board GW2
Place Committee meeting
Contract award
Contract Mobilisation
FTS Contract Award Notice despatch
Contract commencement

5 November 2020
18 November 2020
31 March 2021
10 May 2021
Completed 27 May 2021
1 July 2021
8th July 2021
October 2021
Oct 2021 - Aug 2022
October 2021
1 September 2022

Financial Context
27. The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these challenges.
The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing demand for
services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find adequate
funds to meet the borough's needs.
28. Brexit also created uncertainty and financial challenges for the waste management
industry. However, the food and green waste composting industries are now
reasonably well developed in the UK and so these specific markets are less
exposed to risks associated with Brexit than markets for non-organic recyclates,
which are more heavily reliant on trade agreements and movement of materials
around Europe.
29. The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty. The
impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is currently
unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local businesses
and the Council itself remain uncertain.
30. Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities and the aim of this project has been to
seek the best financial solution for Kingston Council and the Partnership by going
out to tender with a range of options that maximised the opportunities for service
providers to submit proposals.
31. The estimated annual value of the services being procured for Kingston Council
was approximately £600k per annum, and the estimated annual value of the
services being procured on behalf of all boroughs combined was just over £3m per
annum in 20/21.
32. The reduced rates will enable Kingston to manage the costs within existing budgets,
whereas in previous years the costs exceeded the available budget provision.
Resource Implications
33. Waste treatment and disposal budgets are to some extent demand-led, in that they
are in direct proportion to the tonnages of these wastes presented by each

Appendix C
borough’s residents, the costs per tonne associated with the recommended tenders
are less than those being paid to the incumbent contractor. However, whilst the
costs per tonne associated with the recommended tenders are less than those
being paid to the incumbent contractor, due to the impacts of COVID19 and the
resultant increase in the cost of waste treatment and disposal, it is likely that this
saving in the rate per tonne will not result in a budget saving but will rather bring
down the increased costs relating to COVID and bring the boroughs back into
existing budgets.
34. Details of tenders and potential savings are set out in the commercially confidential
annex to this report. PART B Confidential Annexe - Food and Green Waste Procurement Outcome and Evaluation Summary’
35. Due to the procurement design and the necessary carve-up of the services into
smaller more accessible Lots, if the recommendations made here are approved the
services will now be delivered through four contracts with the Partnership, as
opposed to the previous model in which a single contractor managed a number of
subcontractors. This may have Contract Management resource implications.
Legal Implications
36. The project team was advised by Browne Jacobson LLP and supported by the
Partnership’s legal lead officer.
37. This procurement has been operated pursuant to the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (as amended) under a compliant procurement exercise on which detailed
legal and specialist procurement assurance has been sought as appropriate.
38. The Council has the power and authority to enter into the contracts pursuant to
(amongst other provisions) the General Power of Competence provided by the
Localism Act 2011.
39. Under section 358 of the Great London Authority Act 1999, a waste authority must
give a minimum of 56 days’ notice to the Mayor of London before it amends an
existing waste contract or enters into a new one.
40. The partner Boroughs have substantially agreed an inter-authority agreement which
regulates their respective rights and obligations pursuant to the contract.
Risk Assessment
41. The risk assessment of the current stage of the procurement is set out in the table
below:

Risks

Risk Rating

Mitigations

Risk of Challenge

Low

The tendering exercise is compliant with PCR
2015 and the Council’s Contract Regulations

Mobilisation

Low

These are essential front line services, and without
the right receipt points ready to receive green and

Appendix C
food waste the collection services will be severely
impacted.
The recommended option is an existing
commercial facility with minimal upgrades required
in order to receive contract waste and so this risk
is deemed low.

Equalities Analysis
42. The Equalities Manager has been consulted and is sighted on this procurement.
The Equalities Impact Assessment Form B has been completed and agreed with
the Equalities Manager. The advice he gave the project team was incorporated into
the specification and evaluation criteria.
Health Implications
43. The quality of each bidders’ health and safety policies and risk assessments was
given a significant weighting within the tender evaluation scheme, focusing on
issues such as safety accreditation, risk assessments, safety training, and the
bidders’ history of and response to enforcement action by the HSE. The
recommended bidders all provided responses that were evaluated as “good” with
only a few minor omissions that can easily be remedied through the contract
management process.
44. As part of the Standard Selection Questionnaire (SSQ) all bidders had to provide
satisfactory details of their response to and planning for pandemics on the scale of
COVID 19. All bidders passed this part of the SSQ.
Road Network Implications
45. The service specification and evaluation criteria incorporated pass/fail requirements
designed to minimise so far as practicable the ‘waste miles’ driven by vehicles to
any proposed transfer station or other receipt point.
Sustainability Implications
46. The solutions recommended in this report have significant beneficial environmental
implications, transforming around 70,000 tonnes of residents’ waste each year into
non-fossil fuel energy and products that are used in horticulture and agriculture.
None of the waste processed by the successful bidders will go to landfill; even the
small percentage of contaminants in the waste collected will be treated to create
refuse derived fuel.
47. The use of biogas generated from food waste to power a number of local waste
haulage vehicles will have a beneficial impact on local air quality. The specification
and evaluation criteria incorporated the requirement that all heavy goods vehicles
used by successful tenderers should be compliant with the air quality standards
specified for the Mayor of London’s Ultra Low Emissions Zone.

Appendix C
48. There are major implications for sustainability involved in decisions about how best
to treat food and green garden waste. The solutions recommended in this report
deliver optimal treatment outcomes for these wastes in conformity with the Mayor of
London’s Environment Strategy.
Background papers
49. No background papers are presented as part of this report.
The following documents accompany this report as Commercially Confidential Part B
Documents:
PART B Confidential Annexe - Food and Green Waste - Procurement Outcome and
Evaluation Summary
Part B Appendix 1 - PART B - Appendix 1 Evaluation Results
Part B Appendix 2 - PART B - Appendix 2 Matrix Output
Author of report: Andrea Keys, Interim Strategic Partnership Manager, South London
Waste Partnership. andrea.keys@kingston.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D
Place Committee
8 July 2021
Greenspace Services Contract
Report by Sarah Ireland, Executive Director, Corporate and Community
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Stephanie Archer, Portfolio Holder for Environment &
Sustainable Transport
Purpose of Report
To approve the recommendation for award of the contract for Greenspace Services in
the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
1. following a competitive dialogue process, the contract for the provision of green
space services be awarded to the party named in the confidential annex for an
initial period of seven years from 1 November 2021, with the option to apply one
extension for a further seven years further up to a maximum period of 14 years,
upon the terms detailed within this report and the associated confidential annex,
subject to
2. the Section 20 Stage 2 Leaseholder consultation be completed
3. ‘fine tuning’ discussions with the Preferred Bidder are concluded and the
Executive Director of Corporate and Communities, in consultation with the
Monitoring Officer, being satisfied that there are no material changes to the
proposed solution or commercial terms set out in this report.

Benefits to the Community:
Protection of Kingston’s parks, green open spaces and biodiversity, for current and future
generations to enjoy, and for its benefits for our health and well-being.
The realisation of social value benefits to be derived from this contract have been a key
part of the commissioning process and benefits include apprenticeships for local people,
support for volunteering, the encouragement and involvement of community groups in
improving the local environment and supporting nature based solutions to greenspace
management and maintenance.

Appendix D
Key Points
A.

The purpose of the report is to advise the outcome of the competitive tendering
exercise for Greenspace Services and to recommend to the Committee that the
winning bidder is awarded the tender.

B.

The report provides an update and resolution to the previously agreed strategy to
recommission the Greenspace Services contract. On the basis that the existing
contract is due to expire on 31 October 2021 and that discontinuance of the service
is not a viable option. The contract arrangements provide for grounds maintenance
services within parks, on public highways, within RBK managed housing land and
the corporate estate, excluding cemetery grounds that retain current directly
managed arrangements.

C.

The main points addressed in the report concern the number and quality of tenders
received, outcome of quality and price evaluation criteria and recommendation for
appointment of the winning bidder.

D.

The price of the winning tender has come within the existing budget availability and
therefore no immediate financial pressures have been identified. The winning bidder
has also agreed to provide a discounted percentage of their invoice charges
through the Premier Supplier Programme (PSP) mechanism which grants a rebate
for prompt payment.

E.

This service area has been the recipient of budgetary growth commencing financial
year 2021/2022 on the basis of the policy importance of the service and to
recognise the increasingly extensive and intensive use of parks and greenspaces
and their facilities by the local community. The COVID – 19 pandemic has served to
reinforce the importance of these local and multi-purpose facilities.

F.

The new service specification requires new methods of working and site
management to promote biodiversity, reduce emissions and use of natural
resources with a reduction in the use of chemical weed control. The
recommissioning has engendered a uniform service specification across all
corporate grounds within the greenspace contract arrangements which will deliver
enhanced environmental benefits and efficiency savings in the medium term.

G.

The recommissioning of the service has permitted the development of a revised and
improved service specification, which has identified revised Key Performance
Indicators (KPI’s) with agreed benchmark targets to facilitate consistent service
delivery.

H.

The use of modern technology by the Supplier to improve work efficiency, tracking
and monitoring will provide ‘real time’ information to RBK by improving
communications and information exchange within the council and with members of
the community.

I.

The incoming supplier will also be required to comply with RBK policy objectives in
relation to ensuring that all employees are paid the London Living Wage as a
minimum. Enhanced public services are being provided through an enhanced

Appendix D
cleansing regime of public toilets within parks and improved online booking systems
for use of outdoor sports facilities.
J.

There is a statutory requirement to consult with Housing Leaseholders in
compliance with Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (as amended by
Section 151 of the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002). The Section 20
consultation will commence following committee agreement of the recommended
award of contract. This will run for a period of 30 days and the contract award will
be confirmed subject to the completion of the Committee Scrutiny Call-in Process
together with the successful completion of Section 20 consultation together with the
statutory standstill process.

Context
1.

The recommissioning exercise for the greenspaces contracts started in the
autumn of 2019, with internal and external consultation with the community to
inform the future strategy direction for green spaces, as well as options for
service delivery.

2.

Competitive Dialogue was selected as the preferred method of tender.
Competitive Dialogue is defined under Regulation 30 of the Public Contract
Regulations 2015 as a permitted procurement procedure which can be used
where:

3.

●

Needs cannot be met without adaptation of readily available solutions.

●

Where the works, services or supplies include design or innovative
solutions.

●

Where the contract cannot be awarded without prior negotiation because
of the nature of the requirement, the complexity of its legal and financial
make-up or because of its risks.

●

Where the technical specifications cannot be established with sufficient
precision with reference to particular standards.

The use of competitive dialogue for Greenspace Services Recommissioning
offered the opportunity to maximise value for money and minimise risk in the
following ways:
●

Testing the deliverability of solutions.

●

Exploring opportunities for innovation throughout the life of the contract.

●

Ensuring bidders understand and are aligned with organisational policy and
strategic goals.

●

Exploring opportunities for the right balance between cost and quality.

●

Building and testing the client/supplier relationships which will be fundamental
to success, including problem resolution.

Appendix D
4.

Specific benefits and reasons for the greenspace services procurement project
were:
●

Ability to model delivery for some requirements - e.g. community engagement.

●

Testing and adoption of the emerging RBK social value framework and matrix.

●

Positive feedback from market engagement for use of competitive dialogue.

●

Ability to test different risk and financial models with bidders, given some of the
other changes we are introducing (e.g. London Living Wage) and other
requirements during the life of the contract (e.g. fleet and equipment).

5.

The Greenspace Services contract will provide services in our Parks and open
spaces, Public Highway, Housing and Corporate Estate. (The Grounds
Maintenance of Kingston & Surbiton cemeteries shall continue as an in-house
service).

6.

The contract for RBK will be managed by designated staff in the Corporate &
Communities Directorate, Contract meetings for operational purposes will be held
monthly. A Partnership Board with membership including portfolio holders, RBK
staff and Supplier representatives will meet quarterly to discuss performance,
progress reports and matters arising during the course of activity.

7.

The Service will be quality assured by reporting against the contract Key
Performance Indicators (KPI’s) and the service will be delivered within the budget
required. The principles will follow the agreed RBK Contract Management
Scorecard process. There is a requirement for the Supplier to provide regular
and detailed reporting on performance against all KPI measures.

8.

Extensive consultation and engagement has been conducted as part of this
recommissioning exercise. The contract terms and specification has built in
sufficient flexibility to meet current and future financial constraints.

Proposal and Options
9.

The procurement process for Greenspace Services followed a Competitive
Dialogue Tendering Procedure within the Public Procurement Regulations 2015.
The contract opportunity was published on the UK e-notification service called
Find a Tender Service.

10.

The Competitive Dialogue procedure was followed for the reasons and benefits
outlined in the preceding section of this report. Paragraphs 2, 3 and 4.

11.

A number of procurement options were considered, which are included with the
Annex to this report, PART B Confidential Annex - Greenspaces
Recommissioning GATEWAY 1: SOURCING STRATEGY OVER £150K.

Appendix D
Scoring Quality/Price Criteria
12.

The submitted tenders were evaluated and scored on the basis of 60%
quality/40% price as this ratio was seen as the most advantageous to the
Council. This is in line with the requirements of the Council’s Contract
regulations.

13.

The outcome of evaluation and scores for each supplier are summarised in the
table included within the Annex to this report PART B Confidential Annex Greenspace Services Contract Award Decision - Tender Evaluation
Summary

Consultations
14.

Prior to the formal procurement process, a consultation with all residents and
relevant stakeholder groups was undertaken to inform the design of the service
specification. Details can be found in the background papers. In addition to that a
second round of consultation was undertaken in December 2020 with housing
tenants and leaseholders to sense check the chosen approach. Further to that,
resident representatives were invited to one of the dialogue sessions with bidders
to check and challenge their proposals and input in terms of requirements from
future arrangements.

15.

There is a statutory requirement to consult with Housing Leaseholders in
compliance with Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (as amended by
Section 151 of the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002). The
Section 20 consultation will commence following committee agreement of the
recommended award of contract. This will run for a period of 30 days and the
contract award will be confirmed subject to the completion of the Committee
Scrutiny Call-in Process together with the successful completion of Section 20
consultation together with the statutory standstill process.

Timescale
Activity
Commissioning
Recommendation

Proposed Date
Governance

Board

Endorsement

of June 2021

Committee Approval of Recommendation

8 July 2021

Committee Scrutiny Call-in (10 working days from Committee Date)

22 July 2021

Section 20 Stage 2 Consultation (30 days from Committee)

8 August 2021

Appendix D
Contract award

9 August 2021

Standstill Period (Alcatel)

20 August 2021

Contract Mobilisation

September 2021

FTS Contract Award Notice despatch

September 2021

Contract commencement

1
2021

November

Financial Context
16.

The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.

17.

The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remains uncertain.

18.

Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities

Resource Implications
19.

If the projected work outlined within the tendered specification is fully completed
as planned, annual expenditure is anticipated to be within the purview of the
allocated revenue budget.

20.

The tender has been priced on a bill of quantity basis which means that the costs
to each of the client department areas has been itemised. The client areas are;
Environment, Highways, Housing and Corporate Property.

21.

TUPE is applicable for this contract. After the contract has been awarded the
obligations under TUPE will lie with the outgoing supplier and the incoming
supplier not the council, as applicable.

Appendix D
22.

The Council’s role was to assist in facilitating the transfer of employee
information between the incumbent supplier and suppliers who were interested in
bidding for the contract. That has now been completed.

Legal Implications
23.

The Council has the power to enter this contract by virtue of the enabling powers
under section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the general power of
competence under section 1 of the Localism Act.

24.

The contract is over the threshold set in the Public Contract Regulations 2015
and has been procured under the Competitive Dialogue procedure in compliance
with Regulation 30 (1) and Regulation 3 of the Council Procurement Regulations.

25.

The contract will be on the terms and conditions issued to all bidders as part of
the tendering process, and once entered under seal in accordance with Council
Regulation 14 will be placed on the Councils Contracts Register and on
Contracts Finder in compliance with Council Regulation 11.

Risk Assessment
26.

The estimated volume of work to be completed in any given year has been
estimated within the Bills of Quantity and Schedule of Rates items and therefore
the risk of service failure has been minimised and the risk of budgetary
overspend has been similarly reduced.

27.

The use of the Competitive Dialogue process has provided officers with the
opportunity to discuss the service requirements with the suppliers in quite
exhaustive detail over a number of weeks. This has also allowed the key
personnel from both organisations to gain understanding of each other's
priorities and ambitions for the service.

28.

The table below describes the key risks and mitigating activity by awarding this
contract.

Risks
Any delay to awarding the
contract will delay the
commencement of the
grounds maintenance
programme.

Risk Rating
Medium

Mitigations
The contract has been designed to commence
during the dormant season when natural factors
such as grass and shrub growth are at their least
active. This means that any short term delay in
mobilising the contract will be recoverable.

Appendix D
Budgetary Overspend
due to extenuating factors

Low

The contract specification and unit rates within the
bill of quantities has been prepared based on
known volumes of work in preceding years.
Current known service risk factors arising from
COVID-19 have been calculated within the service
outputs.

Standstill Rules challenge
to award of contract

Low

The tendering exercise is compliant with PCR
2015 and the Council’s Contract Regulations. RBK
has followed a legitimate commissioning process
in full compliance with PCR 2015. The information
to be provided to unsuccessful bidders will be
sufficiently detailed to reduce the risk of challenge.

Section 20 challenge

Low

The commissioning process followed and the
outcome will be able to demonstrate to
Leaseholders that the service requirements have
been fully tested in the commercial marketplace
and that the contract has been awarded on the
basis of the most economically advantageous
tender.

Equalities Analysis
29.

There are no new or revised changes to policy or services as a result of this
contract which would have an impact on the equality of individuals or groups

Health Implications
30.

One of the award criterion for the tender covered the policies and procedures the
contractor will operate to discharge their Health & Safety duties, including
subcontractors if relevant, and they were requested to demonstrate how they
eliminate hazards and control risks, explain the roles and responsibilities of the
person(s) responsible for managing Health & Safety including procedures for
monitoring and your methods for recording and investigating accidents and
incidents. Bidders were also required to detail Health & Safety and wider training
programmes including induction training for all staff, including sub-contractors,
ongoing training and support to deliver the service, methods of consultation with
their workforce on Health & Safety matters.

Road Network Implications
31.

It is expected that the award of this contract will not result in increases to traffic,
pollution or parking pressures. As this is a replacement contract no new impacts
are anticipated. The recommissioning of the contract has a requirement for the
service provider to meet the highest standards of emissions based on Euro 6
specifications. Where works are being undertaken on Highway verges and

Appendix D
central reservations the contract specification and methodology requires the
Contractor to liaise with and comply with the requirements of statutory agencies.
Sustainability Implications
32.

The purpose of this contract is to seek continuing environmental improvement
through the effective management and maintenance of the greenspaces and
associated natural areas, owned by the council. Capacity and specific activities
within the contract will also facilitate the enhancement of biodiversity, restoration
of natural systems and habitats and wildlife friendly planting programmes.

33.

The Supplier is required to use the most environmentally sustainable vehicles
and equipment. There is a requirement to recycle natural green waste arising
from the contractual operations. There will be a requirement to meet carbon
reduction targets throughout the life of the contract and reduce the use of natural
resources through adoption of sustainable practices.

34.

The procurement process required that Suppliers responded to the RBK Social
Value Matrix against a number of target criteria. The Social Value
offer/contribution from each supplier was scored as part of the Quality Method
Statements.

35.

The annual measurement and achievement of Social Value has been embedded
within the contract Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) and as such will form part
of the Terms and Conditions of contract.

36.

The recommended Supplier has advised that they will provide social value in
relation to the following areas: Apprenticeships, Staff Training & Career
Progressions, Volunteer & Community Support Programmes and Carbon
Reduction & Environmental Sustainability.

Background papers
Greenspaces Recommissioning CGB_ Cabinet Decisions - Sourcing Strategy - to
CHEP CGB-Cabinet Decisions - Sourcing Strategy
Author of report - Colin Stuart, Greenspaces Development Manager,
Email: colin.stuart@kingston.gov.uk
Tel: 0208 547 5586

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix E
Place Committee
8 July 2021
Greenspaces Recommissioning - Contract for the provision of Arboricultural
Services
Report by Sarah Ireland, Executive Director, Corporate and Community
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Stephanie Archer, Portfolio Holder for Environment &
Sustainable Transport
Purpose of Report
To approve the recommendation for award of the contract for Arboricultural Services in
the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames.

Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
1. Following an open tender process, the contract for the provision of
arboricultural services be awarded to the party named in the Part B Confidential
Annex for an initial period of seven years from 1 November 2021, with the option
to apply one extension for a further seven years further up to a maximum period
of 14 years, upon the terms detailed within this report and the associated
confidential annex, subject to
2. The Section 20 Stage 2 Leaseholder consultation is completed.

Benefits to the Community:
Protection of Kingston’s parks, green open spaces and biodiversity, for current and future
generations to enjoy, and for its benefits for our health and well-being.
Sustaining and improving the Borough’s tree stock will lead to increases in physical and
mental health, improvement in air quality, biodiversity net gain and carbon reduction.
There is significant opportunity built into the new contract specification to develop further
community involvement in related activities across the borough, such as a volunteer Tree
Warden Scheme.

Appendix E
Key Points
A.

The purpose of the report is to advise the outcome of the competitive tendering
exercise for Arboricultural Services and to recommend to the Committee that the
winning bidder is awarded the tender.

B.

The report provides an update and resolution to the previously agreed strategy to
recommission the Arboricultural Services contract. On the basis that the existing
contract is due to expire on 31 October 2021 and that discontinuance of the service
is not a viable option.

C.

The main points addressed in the report concern the number and quality of tenders
received, outcome of quality and price evaluation criteria and recommendation for
appointment of the winning bidder.

D.

The price of the winning tender has come within the existing budget availability and
therefore no immediate financial pressures have been identified. The winning bidder
has also agreed to provide a discounted percentage of their invoice charges
through the Premier Supplier Programme (PSP) mechanism which grants a rebate
for prompt payment.

E.

This service area has been the recipient of budgetary growth commencing financial
year 2021/2022 on the basis of the policy importance of the service and to
recognise the need to control new invasive species to protect tree stock and people.

F.

The service specification has however identified new methods of treatment for
invasive species and control with the aim of reducing expenditure in the longer
term, subject to any extenuating and unforeseen circumstances which may arise.

G.

The new contract formalises arrangements for Arboricultural Services for RBK’s
property estate in addition to those previously in place for trees on the public
highway, in parks and within RBK housing land.

H.

The recommissioning of the service has permitted the development of a revised and
improved service specification, identified key environmental improvements in
operation delivery to provide carbon reduction measures and more effective use of
natural resources. Similarly the use of modern technology to improve work
efficiency and improve communications and information exchange with members of
the community.

I.

There is a statutory requirement to consult with Housing Leaseholders in
compliance with Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (as amended by
Section 151 of the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002). The Section 20
consultation will commence following committee agreement of the recommended
award of contract. This will run for a period of 30 days and the contract award will
be confirmed subject to the completion of the Committee Scrutiny Call-in Process
together with the successful completion of Section 20 consultation together with the
statutory standstill process.

Appendix E
Context
1. The recommissioning exercise for the greenspaces contracts started in the autumn
of 2019, with internal and external consultation to inform the future strategy
direction in this space as well as options for service delivery. This is a high profile
and extremely sensitive area with the community and any perceived inappropriate
treatment of the tree stock is likely to result in adverse publicity. All required works
to trees will be effectively controlled, managed and communicated through the new
contractual arrangements.
2. The benefits of having a well- managed and diverse tree stock within the borough is
a cornerstone of the RBK Tree Strategy. Increasingly trees are defined as a key
contributor to reducing the impacts of climate change, through regulating aspects of
the urban environment such as reducing summer heat, providing shade and
absorbing pollutants. Similarly they have a vital role in enhancing urban biodiversity
e.g. through providing a food source for pollinating insects. The recommissioning of
the Arboricultural Services offers an opportunity to align service delivery with these
priorities.
3. The continuation of separate contract arrangements for Grounds Maintenance and
Arboricultural Services as previously approved has progressed. Both contracts will
provide services in our Parks and open spaces, Public Highway, Housing Land and
Corporate Estate.
4. The contract for RBK will be managed by designated staff in the Corporate &
Communities Directorate, Contract meetings for operational purposes will be held
monthly.
5. The Service will be quality assured by reporting against the contract Key
Performance Indicators and the service will be delivered within the budget required.
The principles will follow the agreed RBK Contract Management Scorecard
process. There is a requirement for the Supplier to provide regular and detailed
reporting on performance against all KPI measures.
6. Extensive consultation and engagement has been conducted as part of this
recommissioning exercise. The contract terms and specification has built in
sufficient flexibility to meet current and future financial constraints.
7. The operating model for the service remains largely as per the current arrangement.
That is, except in the case of out of hours emergencies or other exceptional
circumstances, the responsibility for inspection and work instructions for tree
maintenance works sits with suitably qualified council officers.

Proposal and Options

Appendix E
8. The procurement process for Arboricultural Services followed a Competitive Open
Tendering Procedure within the Public Procurement Regulations 2015. The contract
opportunity was published on the UK e-notification service called Find a Tender
Service.
9. The Open procedure was followed as the requirement is straightforward; the
services required can be clearly defined; a select number of specialist qualified
contractors provide these services and have a preference for simple tendering
procedures that are not time consuming; RBK drafted its own terms and conditions
to meet RBK objectives.
10. The following procurement options were considered: See PART B Confidential
Annex 1 - Greenspaces Recommissioning GATEWAY 1: SOURCING
STRATEGY OVER £150K.
Scoring Quality/Price Criteria
11. The submitted tenders were evaluated and scored on the basis of 60% quality/40%
price as this ratio was seen as the most advantageous to the Council. This is in line
with the requirements of the Council’s Contract regulations.
12. The outcome of evaluation and scores for each supplier are summarised in the
table included within the Annex to this report PART B Confidential Annex 2 Arboricultural Services Contract Award Decision - Tender Evaluation
Summary.
Consultations
13. There is a statutory requirement to consult with Housing Leaseholders in
compliance with Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (as amended
Section 151 of the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002).

by

14. The Section 20 consultation will commence following committee agreement of the
recommended award of contract. This will run for a period of 30 days and the
contract award will be confirmed subject to the completion of the Committee
Scrutiny Call-in Process together with the successful completion of Section 20
consultation together with the statutory standstill process.
Timescale
Activity

Proposed Date

Commissioning Governance Board Endorsement
of Recommendation

10 May 2021

Committee Approval of Recommendation

8 July 2021

Appendix E
Standstill Period (Alcatel - 10 calendar days from
Committee Date)

20 July 2021

Committee Scrutiny Call-in (10 working days from
Committee Date)

22 July 2021

Section 20 Stage 2 Consultation (30 days from
Committee)

8 August 2021

Contract award

9 August 2021

Contract Mobilisation

September 2021

FTS Contract Award Notice despatch

September 2021

Contract commencement

1 November 2021

Financial Context
15. The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these challenges.
The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing demand for
services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find adequate
funds to meet the borough's needs.
16. The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty. The
impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is currently
unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local businesses
and the Council itself remains uncertain.
17. Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities.
18. If the projected work outlined within the tendered specification is fully completed as
planned, annual expenditure is anticipated to be within the purview of the allocated
revenue budget.
19. However the estimated volume of work to be completed in any given year is liable
to fluctuation due to situations arising out of the direct control of the Council. These

Appendix E
include areas such as emergency work arising from storm conditions, insurance
related works and weather conditions favouring insect pests. However
approximately 75% of expenditure is derived from programmed and planned works
which ensures that annual budgetary allocations are not exceeded.
20. This service area has had an increase in budget provision of £50,000, commencing
financial year 2021/2022, this is to provide a more dedicated budget for the control
of Oak Processionary Moth an invasive introduced species which has a serious
impact particularly on oak species and also has an impact on human health which
although relatively minor for most people can cause breathing difficulties and skin
rashes due to the irritating hairs released by the caterpillar larvae.
21. The existing more widespread infestations will be initially targeted with the intention
of eradicating the pest on a locality basis if possible or otherwise reducing the pest
to a more manageable and contained level. The new contract specification has also
included less expensive management techniques to control the pest and the
intention is that this will lead to budgetary savings in the early years of the contract,
providing all current factors remain equal.
Resource Implications
22. TUPE is not applicable for this contract.

Legal Implications
23. The contract value is over the threshold for service contracts and as such was
procured in compliance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015, Regulation 27 in
respect of the Open Procedure and Regulations 1, 2 (2) of the Councils Contract
Regulations.
24. The contract award will require a contract award notice to be issued and the
contract to be entered onto the contracts register. In addition, a Regulation 84
Report will need to be provided in accordance with the Public Contract
Regulations 2015.
25. The report correctly sets out the statutory requirements to consult with leaseholders
and Members noting that a failure to comply with this statutory consultation could
result in the Council being unable to recover apportioned costs from leaseholders
for the duration of the contract awarded.
Risk Assessment
26. The estimated volume of work to be completed in any given year is liable to
fluctuation due to situations arising out of the direct control of the Council. These
include areas such as emergency work arising from storm conditions, insurance
related works and weather conditions favouring insect pests. However
approximately 75% of the expenditure is derived from programmed and planned

Appendix E
works which ensures that annual budgetary allocations are not exceeded.
27. Due to the increasing cost of controlling the invasive pest Oak Processionary Moth
(OPM) budgetary growth of £50,000.00 has been allocated commencing
2021/2022.
28. Based on the three previous year’s expenditure the cost of emergency,
non-programmed and work to control OPM has been extrapolated and included
within the budget allocation.

29. The table below describes the key risks and mitigating activity by awarding this
contract.
Risks

Risk Rating

Mitigations

Any delay to awarding the
contract will delay the
commencement of the
cyclical tree pruning
programme.

Medium

The programme can be rescheduled
and prioritised to ensure that the
most critical pruning operations are
completed before leaf growth
re-commences.

Budgetary Overspend
due to extenuating factors

Low

There is a likelihood that storm or bad
weather conditions increase the need
for emergency and out of hours
working. This has been factored into
the contract price based on the
average requirement over the
previous three contract years.

Standstill Rules challenge
to award of contract

Low

The tendering exercise is compliant
with PCR 2015 and the Council’s
Contract Regulations. RBK has
followed a legitimate commissioning
process in full compliance with PCR
2015. The information to be provided
to unsuccessful bidders will be
sufficiently detailed to reduce the risk
of challenge.

Section 20 challenge

Low

The commissioning process followed
and the outcome will be able to
demonstrate to Leaseholders that the
service requirements have been fully
tested in the commercial marketplace
and that the contract has been
awarded on the basis of the most
economically advantageous tender.

Appendix E

Equalities Analysis
30. There are no new or revised changes to policy or services as a result of this
contract which would have an impact on the equality of individuals or groups.
Health Implications
31. One of the award criterion for the tender will covered the policies and procedures
the contractor will operate to discharge their Health & Safety duties, including
subcontractors if relevant, and they were requested to demonstrate how they
eliminate hazards and control risks, explain the roles and responsibilities of the
person(s) responsible for managing Health & Safety including procedures for
monitoring and your methods for recording and investigating accidents and
incidents. Bidders were also required to detail Health & Safety and wider training
programmes including induction training for all staff, including sub-contractors,
ongoing training and support to deliver the service, methods of consultation with
their workforce on Health & Safety matters.
32. For Arboricultural service contractors specifically outlined health and safety
procedures for completing tree works on public Highways in highly trafficked
locations.
Road Network Implications
33. It is expected that the award of this contract will not result in increases to traffic,
pollution or parking pressures. As this is a replacement contract no new impacts are
anticipated. The recommissioning of the contract has a requirement for the service
provider to meet the highest standards of emissions based on Euro 6 specifications.
Where works are being undertaken on Highway Trees the contract specification and
methodology requires the Contractor to liaise with and comply with the
requirements of statutory agencies.
Sustainability Implications
34. The purpose of this contract is to seek continuing environmental improvement
through the effective management and maintenance of the tree stock, owned by the
council. Capacity and specific activities within the contract will also facilitate the tree
planting programme subject to annual budgets being identified.
35. The Supplier is required to use the most environmentally sustainable vehicles and
equipment. There is a requirement to recycle natural green waste arising from the
contractual operations. The watering of young tree stock will be carefully monitored
and all standard trees will be planted with tree watering bags to target water into the
tree root zone avoiding wastage of natural resources through misapplied irrigation.

Appendix E
36. The procurement process required that Suppliers responded to the RBK Social
Value Matrix against a number of target criteria. The Social Value offer/contribution
from each supplier was scored as part of the Quality Method Statements.
37. The annual measurement and achievement of Social Value has been embedded
within the contract Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) and as such will form part of
the Terms and Conditions of contract.
38. The recommended supplier has advised that they will provide social value in
relation to the following areas: creation and management of green infrastructure,
company support for local community projects, commitment to staff wellbeing
through health screening, provision of work placements and apprenticeships for
local people and commitment to low emission vehicles.
Background papers
● Greenspaces Recommissioning CGB_ Cabinet Decisions - Sourcing Strategy
- to CHEP
Colin Stuart, Greenspaces Development Manager colin.stuart@kingston.gov.uk
TEL: 0208 5475586

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

